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enhancing sales
During the most challenging economic time in the history
of our company, we have continued to move aggressively
to protect our brand through: 1) continuing to employ
the best people in the industry; 2) committing significant
capital to improve our existing store base; 3) developing
a superior birthday party experience for our guests;
and 4) implementing new marketing strategies to drive
incremental traffic. Through the successful execution of
these strategies, we were able to increase same calendar
week average store sales during 2010 by 1.5%.

We enhanced our marketing strategies through inclusion of
select value messaging during 2010 on national television
campaigns, such as our $9.99 Summer Pizza Saver. This
type of value messaging continues to be central to our
brand message, driving incremental guest visits and online
coupon redemption. Notably, we were successful at
continuing to provide an excellent value proposition to our
guests while reducing our average coupon discount, which
produced stronger store margins.

Chuck E. Cheese’s is all about the experience — the
experience of a family coming together to share food,
games, prizes and fun. Our people make that experience
possible and deserve the credit for making Chuck E.
Cheese’s the number one family entertainment and dining
destination in the world. With an average tenure of 20.5
years for Regional Vice Presidents and Area Directors and
12 years for District and General Managers, our people
know the high standards our guests expect from us, and we
consistently execute on exceeding those expectations.
We continually strive to provide our guests with this
unique, fun and exciting place to enjoy time with their
families. During 2010 we invested more than $60 million
in capital on our existing stores in order to improve our
guests’ in-store experience with expansions, remodels and
game enhancements. This significant capital commitment
transformed 223 stores with 15 major remodels, 28 store
expansions and 180 game enhancements during 2010. We
plan to invest in excess of $62 million in 2011 in existing
stores to continue the evolution of our product in
the marketplace.
The guest birthday party experience was enhanced
significantly with the arrival of the Ticket Blaster in all
stores as of June 2010. The Ticket Blaster is reserved
only for the birthday child to get in and grab all the
tickets they can while their friends cheer them on
from the outside, generating fun and excitement for
everyone. We supported this initiative with a national
advertising campaign, which included the promotion of
the extended birthday party from 1 B⁄c hours to 2 hours.
Additionally, we enhanced our birthday party package and
Super Star upgrade package with new components, and
implemented a 100 bonus token promotion to shift parties
from Saturdays to Fridays and Sundays. These initiatives
have improved the overall value and appeal of the birthday
party experience, which helped drive an increase in 2010
birthday party sales of 13%.

enhancing results
Our business model has produced significantly strong
cash flows over time, validating the appropriateness of
our business strategies. Over the past five years our cash
flow, as measured by earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization as a percent of total
revenues, has averaged 23% and was never lower than
22.5%. We believe our demonstrated ability to sustain
consistent and strong cash flows speaks not only to
our financial strength but to the vitality of the Chuck E.
Cheese’s concept — both in the United States and abroad.
We believe there are tremendous long-term growth
opportunities ahead, both domestically and internationally,
to grow our proven concept and further imprint the
Chuck E Cheese’s brand on guests throughout the world.
Domestically, between 2006 and 2010 we opened a total of

39 new stores (including 7 relocations). In 2010 we opened
7 new domestic stores (including 2 relocations), and we
are planning to open another 6 in 2011. In addition to the
new stores we opened, we also acquired 5 existing store
locations from franchisees. Internationally, the excitement
surrounding our brand has been very encouraging. We
opened three new international franchise stores in 2010
— in Chile, the island of Guam, and Saudi Arabia — and we
are pleased with the initial sales results. In 2011, we will
continue our strategic growth plan of seeking quality
franchise partners in the key Latin American countries of
Argentina, Brazil, Colombia, Costa Rica, Mexico, Panama,
Peru and Puerto Rico.

enhancing shareholder value
During 2010 we once again confirmed our long-term
commitment to our stock repurchase plan, buying back
$77.6 million of our common stock totaling 2.2 million shares,
which represented 10% of diluted shares outstanding as
of the end of 2010. We had a remaining outstanding share
repurchase authorization of $141.1 million at the end of 2010.
Given our confidence in our ability to continue to
generate strong cash flow in the future, we believe
it is appropriate to not only return capital to our
shareholders through share repurchases but also to
return cash to our shareholders through a cash dividend
payment. Recently our Board of Directors approved
the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend of $0.20 per
share, or $0.80 per share each year. Our first quarterly
dividend of $0.20 per share will be paid on April 21, 2011
to shareholders of record on March 24, 2011. Due to
the timing of the Board’s decision, dividends for 2011 are
expected to be $0.60 per share. While the declaration
of dividends is subject to the final determination and
approval of our Board, we currently intend to pay regular
quarterly dividends for the foreseeable future.

The initiation of a dividend payment and the continuation
of our share repurchases are confirmation of our
commitment to return capital to our shareholders.

enhancing communities
Giving back to our communities is essential to us. In
the communities that we serve, we continue to provide
support through our school and non-profit fundraising
events. Since the inception of this program in 2004 we
have given back $6.0 million to our communities and
during 2010 alone we donated $1.7 million, an increase of
29% over the prior year.

enhancing lives
Our people make the difference. They drive the overall
experience at Chuck E. Cheese’s to be exciting to each
and every one of our guests, and we have the industry’s
top talent to make it all happen. We would like to take this
opportunity to thank each member of our corporate and
franchise team for all of their hard work and dedication,
and you, our shareholders, for your continued support.
Sincerely,

Richard M. Frank
executive chairman

Michael H. Magusiak
President & CEO

2010 Form

CEC Entertainment, Inc.

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934



For the fiscal year ended January 2, 2011
OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934



For the transition period from ________ to ________
Commission File Number: 001-13687

CEC ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Kansas

48-0905805

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

(IRS Employer Identification No.)

4441 West Airport Freeway
Irving, Texas

75062

(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip Code)

(972) 258-8507

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Name of each exchange on which registered
New York Stock Exchange

Title of each class
Common Stock, $0.10 par value

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None
Yes 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
No 
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes  No 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for
such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes  No 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes  No 
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K
or any amendment to this Form 10-K. 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of ―large accelerated filer,‖ ―accelerated filer‖ and ―smaller reporting company‖ in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act:
Large accelerated filer  Accelerated filer  Non-accelerated filer  (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)
Smaller reporting company 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes  No 
As of July 2, 2010, the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter, the aggregate market value of the
common stock beneficially held by non-affiliates of the registrant was $619,220,655. (For purposes hereof, directors, executive officers and 10% or
greater stockholders have been assumed to be affiliates).
As of February 14, 2011, an aggregate of 20,325,514 shares of the registrant’s common stock, par value $0.10 per share, were outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the registrant's Definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in
connection with the registrant's 2011 annual meeting of stockholders, are incorporated by reference in Part III of this report.

CEC ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
Forward-Looking Statements ..............................................................................................................

3

ITEM 1.

Business ...............................................................................................................................................

4

ITEM 1A.

Risk Factors ....................................................................................................................................

8

ITEM 1B.

Unresolved Staff Comments ...........................................................................................................

12

ITEM 2.

Properties ........................................................................................................................................

13

ITEM 3.

Legal Proceedings ...........................................................................................................................

14

ITEM 4.

(Removed and Reserved) ................................................................................................................

14

ITEM 5.

Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities .................................................................................................

15

ITEM 6.

Selected Financial Data ..................................................................................................................

17

ITEM 7.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations ................................................................................................................................

19

ITEM 7A.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk ........................................................

33

ITEM 8.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data ...............................................................................

34

ITEM 9.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure .................................................................................................................................

56

ITEM 9A.

Controls and Procedures .................................................................................................................

56

ITEM 9B.

Other Information ...........................................................................................................................

56

ITEM 10.

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance ...................................................................

57

ITEM 11.

Executive Compensation .....................................................................................................................

57

ITEM 12.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters .......................................................................................................................

57

ITEM 13.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence .....................................

57

ITEM 14.

Principal Accountant Fees and Services ..............................................................................................

57

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules........................................................................................

57

SIGNATURES ..................................................................................................................................................................

58

PART I

PART II

PART III

PART IV
ITEM 15.

EXHIBIT INDEX

2

Within this report, unless otherwise indicated, any use of the terms “CEC Entertainment,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” and
“our” refer to CEC Entertainment, Inc and its subsidiaries.
Forward-Looking Statements
Certain statements in this report, other than historical information, may be considered ―forward-looking statements‖ within the
meaning of the ―safe harbor‖ provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and are subject to various risks,
uncertainties and assumptions. Statements that are not historical in nature, and which may be identified by the use of words such as
―may,‖ ―should,‖ ―could,‖ ―believe,‖ ―predict,‖ ―potential,‖ ―continue,‖ ―plan,‖ ―intend,‖ ―expect,‖ ―anticipate,‖ ―future,‖ ―project,‖
―estimate‖ and similar expressions (or the negative of such expressions) are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements
are made based on management’s current expectations and beliefs concerning future events and, therefore, involve a number of
assumptions, risks and uncertainties, including the risk factors described in Item 1A ―Risk Factors‖ of this Annual Report on Form 10K. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may
differ from those anticipated, estimated or expected. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
contemplated by forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:
Changes in consumer discretionary spending and general economic conditions;
Our ability to successfully implement our business development strategies;
Costs incurred in connection with our business development strategies;
Negative publicity concerning food quality, health, safety and other issues;
Competition in both the restaurant and entertainment industries;
Disruptions in the financial markets affecting the availability and cost of credit and our ability to maintain adequate insurance
coverage;
Loss of certain key personnel;
Increases in food, labor and other operating costs;
Changes in consumers’ health, nutrition and dietary preferences;
Continued existence or occurrence of certain public health issues;
Disruption of our commodity distribution system;
Our dependence on a few global providers for the procurement of games and rides;
Fluctuations in our quarterly results of operations due to seasonality;
Adverse effects of local conditions, natural disasters and other events;
Risks in connection with owning and leasing real estate;
Our ability to adequately protect our trademarks or other proprietary rights;
Government regulations, litigation, product liability claims and product recalls;
Disruptions of our information technology systems; and
Conditions in foreign markets.
The forward-looking statements made in this report relate only to events as of the date on which the statements were made.
Except as may be required by law, we undertake no obligation to update our forward-looking statements to reflect events and
circumstances after the date on which the statements were made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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PART

I

ITEM 1. Business.
General
Chuck E. Cheese’s® is a nationally recognized leader in family dining and entertainment. CEC Entertainment, Inc. was
incorporated in the state of Kansas in 1980. We consider the family dining and entertainment center business to be our sole reportable
operating segment.
Company Overview
We develop, operate and franchise family dining and entertainment centers (also referred to as ―stores‖) under the name ―Chuck
E. Cheese’s‖ in 48 states and seven foreign countries or territories. Chuck E. Cheese's stores feature musical and comic entertainment
by robotic and animated characters, arcade-style and skill-oriented games, video games, rides and other activities intended to appeal to
our primary customer base of families with children between two and 12 years of age. All of our stores offer dining selections
consisting of a variety of beverages, pizzas, sandwiches, appetizers, a salad bar, and desserts.
We believe that the dining and entertainment components of our business are interdependent, and therefore we primarily manage
and promote them as an integrated product. Our typical guest experience involves a combination of wholesome family dining and
entertainment, comprised of token-operated games and rides, and attractions provided free-of-charge. This integrated product drives
our business development strategies as we endeavor to drive guest traffic into our stores, benefiting both dining and entertainment
revenue.
The first Chuck E. Cheese’s opened in 1977. Currently, we and our franchisees operate a total of 554 Chuck E. Cheese's stores
located in 48 states and seven foreign countries or territories. As of January 2, 2011, we operated 507 Company-owned Chuck E.
Cheese’s stores located in 44 states and Canada and our franchisees operated a total of 47 stores located in 15 states, Puerto Rico,
Guam, Guatemala, Chile, Saudi Arabia, and the United Arab Emirates. See Item 2. ―Properties‖ for more information regarding the
number and location of Chuck E. Cheese’s stores.
Business Development Strategy
Our business development strategy is focused on maintaining and evolving our existing stores, developing high sales volume
Company-owned stores primarily in densely populated areas, and selling development rights to franchisees in domestic and
international markets where we do not currently intend to open Company-owned stores.
Existing Stores. We believe that in order to maintain consumer demand for and the appeal of our concept, we must continually
reinvest in our existing stores. For our existing stores, we currently utilize the following capital initiatives: (a) game enhancements; (b)
major remodels; and (c) store expansions. While initiatives such as expansions may capitalize on incremental revenue growth
opportunities, we believe our capital initiatives involving major remodels and game enhancements serve more to preserve our existing
sales base and cash flows over the long term.
Game enhancements include replacing a portion of the store’s games and rides with new and, to a lesser extent, refurbished
equipment. We believe game enhancements are necessary to maintain the relevance and appeal of our games and rides. In addition,
game enhancements enable us to introduce improvements in game and ride technology. We completed 180 game enhancements in
2010. We currently expect to enhance the games and rides at approximately 140 to 150 stores in fiscal 2011 at an average cost of
approximately $0.1 million to $0.2 million per store.
We undertake periodic major remodels when there is a need to improve the overall appearance or layout of a store or when we
introduce concept changes or enhancements to our stores. The major remodel initiative typically includes interior design modifications
that allow us to more effectively utilize space allocated to the playroom area of the store, increasing the number of games and rides
and developing a new interior identity. We completed 15 major remodel initiatives in 2010. We currently expect to complete
approximately 15 to 20 major remodels in fiscal 2011 at an average cost of approximately $0.6 million per store.
We believe store expansions improve the quality of the guests’ experience because the additional square footage allows us to
increase the number and variety of games, rides and other entertainment offerings in the expanded stores. In addition to expanding the
square footage of a store, store expansions typically include all components of a major remodel and result in an increase in the store’s
seat count. We completed 28 store expansions in 2010. We currently expect to complete approximately 30 to 35 store expansions in
fiscal 2011 at an average cost of approximately $1.0 million per store.
New Company Store Development. Our plan for the development of new Company-owned stores primarily focuses on opening
high sales volume stores in densely populated areas. During 2010, we opened seven new Company-owned stores, including two
relocated stores. The new stores we have opened over the past two years have an average square footage of approximately 15,000 to
16,000 square feet and generate average annual sales of approximately $2.0 million per store. In addition to the new stores we opened
during 2010, we also acquired five existing store locations from franchisees. We currently expect to open approximately six new
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Company-owned stores, including three relocations, in fiscal 2011 at an average cost of approximately $2.7 million to $2.8 million per
store.
We periodically reevaluate the site characteristics of our stores and will consider relocating a store if certain site characteristics
considered essential for the success of a store deteriorate, more desirable property becomes available or we are unable to negotiate
acceptable lease terms with the existing landlord.
See Item 7. ―Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations‖ for more information
regarding our capital initiatives and related capital expenditures.
New Domestic Franchise Store Development. We added one new domestic franchise store in 2010. Currently, our domestic
franchisees have rights to develop an additional 11 stores. Under our domestic agreements, we expect to open approximately two
domestic franchise stores in fiscal 2011. We are currently offering franchise development rights in approximately 15 domestic
markets.
International Growth. We believe that we have an opportunity to further expand the Chuck E. Cheese’s concept globally. We
have formalized a strategic plan for international growth and are actively seeking franchise partners in key Latin American countries
including Argentina, Brazil, Columbia, Costa Rica, Mexico, Panama, Peru and Puerto Rico. In 2010, our international franchisees
opened a new store in each Guam, Chile and Saudi Arabia. Under our international agreements, we expect to open approximately four
international franchise stores in fiscal 2011.
Store Design
Chuck E. Cheese's are typically located in shopping centers or in free-standing buildings near shopping centers. Chuck E.
Cheese’s stores are typically divided into three areas: (1) a kitchen and related areas (cashier and prize area, salad bar, manager’s
office, technician’s office, restrooms, etc.), (2) a showroom area, and (3) a playroom area. Total table and chair seating in both the
showroom and playroom areas generally average between 325 to 425 guests per store. The showroom area of each Chuck E. Cheese's
typically features a variety of comic and musical entertainment by computer-controlled robotic characters, together with video
monitors and animated props, arranged in various stage-type settings. The playroom area features a variety of arcade-style and skilloriented games, video games, rides and other forms of entertainment.
Food and Beverages
Each Chuck E. Cheese's offers a variety of pizzas, sandwiches, appetizers, a salad bar and desserts. Soft drinks, coffee and tea
are also served, along with beer and wine where permitted by local laws. We believe that the quality of our food compares favorably
with that of our competitors. The majority of the food, beverages and other supplies used in Company-owned stores are currently
distributed under a system-wide agreement with a major food distributor. We believe that this distribution system creates certain cost
and operational efficiencies for us.
Approximately 49.0%, 49.9% and 50.6% of our Company store sales were derived from food and beverage sales during fiscal
years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Entertainment and Merchandise
Each Chuck E. Cheese’s store includes a showroom area featuring musical entertainment presented by robotic and animated
characters and playroom area offering arcade-style and skill-oriented games, rides, video games and other forms of entertainment.
Tokens are used to activate the games and rides in the playroom area. All of our games and rides are activated with one token. A
number of skill-oriented games dispense tickets that can be redeemed by guests for prize merchandise such as toys and plush items.
Our guests can also purchase this merchandise directly. Also included in the playroom area of our stores are tubes and tunnels
suspended from or reaching to the ceiling known as SkyTubes® or other free attractions for young children. We place a limited
amount of table and chair seating in the playroom areas of our Company-owned store so that parents can more closely observe and
interact with their children as they play the games and ride the rides.
Approximately 51.0%, 50.1% and 49.4% of our Company store sales were derived from entertainment and merchandise sales
during fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Marketing
The primary customer base for our stores consists of families with children between two and 12 years of age. We conduct
advertising campaigns focused on families with young children that feature the family entertainment experiences available at Chuck
E. Cheese's with the primary objective of increasing the frequency of customer visits. The primary advertising medium we use
continues to be television, due to its broad access to family audiences and our belief in its ability to effectively communicate the
Chuck E. Cheese's experience. The television advertising campaigns are supplemented by promotional offers in newspapers, cross
promotions with companies that target a similar customer base, our website, Internet advertising campaigns and e-mail.
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Franchising
As of January 2, 2011, a total of 47 Chuck E. Cheese's stores were operated by our franchisees. Of these stores, 36 are located
domestically in the United States and eleven are located internationally in Puerto Rico, Guam, Guatemala, Chile, Saudi Arabia, and
the United Arab Emirates.
Our standard domestic franchise agreement grants to the franchisee the right to construct and operate a store and use the
associated trade names, trademarks and service marks within the standards and guidelines established by us. Most of our existing
franchise agreements have an initial term of 15 to 20 years and include a 10-year renewal option. The standard agreement provides us
with a right of first refusal should a franchisee decide to sell a store. We may enter into area development agreements which grant
franchisees exclusive rights to open a specified number of stores in a designated geographic area within a specified period of time.
We and our franchisees created the International Association of CEC Entertainment, Inc. (the ―Association‖) to discuss and
consider matters of common interest relating to the operation of Company-owned and franchised Chuck E. Cheese’s. Routine business
matters of the Association are conducted by a board of directors of the Association, composed of five members appointed by us and
five members elected by the franchisees. The Association serves as an advisory council, which among other responsibilities, oversees
expenditures from the funds established and managed by the Association. These funds include (1) the Advertising Fund, a fund that
pays the costs of development, purchasing and placement of advertising programs, including Internet website, (2) the Entertainment
Fund, a fund established to develop and improve audio-visual and animated entertainment attractions, as well as the development and
implementation of new entertainment concepts and (3) the Media Fund, a fund primarily designated for the purchase of national
network television advertising. The Association is included in our consolidated financial statements.
In addition to an initial franchise fee and a continuing monthly royalty fee equal to 3.8% of gross sales, the franchise agreements
governing existing franchised Chuck E. Cheese's in the United States currently require each franchisee to pay to the Association a
monthly contribution of 3.4% of gross sales. Additionally, under these franchise agreements, we are required, with respect to
Company-owned stores, to spend for local advertising and to contribute to the Advertising Fund and the Entertainment Fund at the
same rates as franchisees. We and our franchisees could be required to make additional contributions to fund any deficits that may be
incurred by the Association.
Approximately 0.5% of our total revenues were derived from royalties, franchise and area development fees and other
miscellaneous franchise income during fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008.
Foreign Operations
As of January 2, 2011, we operated a total of 14 Company-owned stores in Canada. During fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, our
Canada stores generated total revenues of approximately $21.8 million, $20.8 million and $22.8 million, respectively, representing
approximately 2.7%, 2.5% and 2.8% of our total revenues in each respective fiscal year. As of January 2, 2011, we had approximately
$20.4 million, or approximately 3.0%, of our long-lived assets located in Canada.
Additionally, as of January 2, 2011, our international franchisees operated a total of eleven stores located in Puerto Rico, Guam,
Guatemala, Chile, Saudi Arabia, and the United Arab Emirates. The total revenues derived from our international franchisees are not
material in relation to our total revenues.
These foreign activities are subject to various risks of conducting business in a foreign country, including changes in foreign
currency, laws and regulations and economic and political stability. See Item 1A. ―Risk Factors‖ for more information regarding the
risks associated with our operations located in foreign markets. As of January 2, 2011, we do not believe that we are materially
dependent on these foreign operations.
Competition
The family dining industry and the entertainment industry are highly competitive, with a number of major national and regional
chains operating in each of these spaces. In this regard, we compete for customers on the basis of (1) our name recognition; (2) the
price, quality, variety, and perceived value of our food and entertainment offerings; (3) the quality of our customer service, and (4) the
convenience and attractiveness of our facilities. Although there are other concepts that presently utilize the combined family dining
and entertainment format, these competitors primarily operate on a regional or market-by-market basis. To a lesser extent, we may
also compete directly and/or indirectly with other dining and entertainment formats including, full-service and quick-service
restaurants appealing to families with young children, the quick service pizza segment, movie theaters, and themed amusement
attractions.
We believe that our principal competitive strengths consist of our established recognized brand, the relative quality of the food
and service we provide our customer, the quality and variety of our entertainment offerings, and the location and attractiveness of our
stores. We also believe that our competitive strengths include our tenured management team’s knowledge of the family dining and
entertainment industries relative to our target market of families with young children.
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Intellectual Property
We own various trademarks, including "Chuck E. Cheese’s" and the Chuck E. Cheese character image used in connection with
our business, which have been registered with the appropriate patent and trademark offices. The duration of such trademarks is
unlimited, subject to continued use. We believe that we hold the necessary rights for protection of the trademarks considered essential
to conduct our business. We believe our trade name and our ownership of trademarks in the names and character likenesses featured in
the operation of our stores provides us with an important competitive advantage and we actively seek to protect our interest in such
property.
Seasonality
Our operating results fluctuate seasonally due to the timing of school vacations, holidays and changing weather conditions. As a
result, we typically generate higher sales volumes during the first and third quarters of each fiscal year. School operating schedules,
holidays and weather conditions may affect sales volumes in some operating regions differently than others. Because of the
seasonality of our business, results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be achieved for the full fiscal
year.
Government Regulation
We and our franchisees are subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations affecting the development and
operation of Chuck E. Cheese’s, including, but not limited to, those that impose restrictions, levy a fee or tax, or require a permit or
license, or other regulatory approval, and those that relate to the operation of video and arcade games and rides, the preparation and
sale of food and beverages, the sale and service of alcoholic beverages, and building and zoning requirements. We and our franchisees
are also subject to laws governing relationships with employees, including minimum wage requirements, overtime, working and safety
conditions, immigration status requirements and child labor laws. A significant portion of our store personnel are paid at rates related
to the minimum wage established by federal, state and municipal law and, accordingly, increases in such minimum wage result in
higher labor costs to us. We are also subject to the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and Family Medical
Leave Act mandates. In addition, we are subject to regulation by the Federal Trade Commission, Federal Communications
Commission and must comply with certain state laws which govern the offer, sale and termination of franchises and the refusal to
renew franchises.
Working Capital Practices
Information about our working capital practices is contained under the caption ―Overview of Liquidity‖ included in Item 7.
―Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.‖
Employees
As of January 2, 2011, we employed approximately 17,300 employees, including approximately 17,000 in the operation of our
Company-owned stores and approximately 300 employed in our corporate office. None of our employees are members of any union
or collective bargaining group. We believe that our employee relations are satisfactory, and we have not experienced any work
stoppages at any of our stores.
Each Chuck E. Cheese's store typically employs a general manager, one or two managers, an electronic specialist who is
responsible for repair and maintenance of the robotic characters, games and rides, and 20 to 40 food preparation and service
employees, many of whom work part-time. Our staffing requirements are seasonal and the number of people we employ at our stores
will fluctuate throughout the year.
Available Information
Our principal executive offices are located at 4441 W. Airport Freeway, Irving, Texas 75062, and our telephone number is (972)
258-8507. We maintain a website at www.chuckecheese.com.
We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the ―SEC‖). You may read and copy any reports, statements and other information filed by us at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549-0102. Please call (800) SEC-0330 for further information on the
Public Reference Room. The SEC maintains an Internet website (www.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy and information
statements and other information regarding issuers, including us, that we file electronically with the SEC.
We make available, free of charge, on or through the investor information section of our website our annual reports on Form 10K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, statements of changes in beneficial ownership of securities, and
amendments to those reports and statements as soon as reasonably practicable after electronic filing or furnishing of such material
with the SEC. The address for our website is www.chuckecheese.com.
Documents available on our website include, among others, our (i) Corporate Governance Guidelines, (ii) Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics, (iii) Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer, President and Senior Financial Officers (the ―Code of
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Ethics‖), (iv) Complaint and Reporting Procedures for Accounting and Auditing Matters, and (v) Charters for the Audit,
Compensation, and Nominating/Corporate Governance Committees of the Board of Directors. These documents are also available in
print, free of charge, to any stockholder who requests a copy from the Secretary, Meredith W. Bjorck, at 4441 W. Airport Freeway,
Irving, Texas 75062. We intend to disclose future amendments to, or waivers from, certain provisions of the Code of Ethics on our
website.
ITEM 1A. Risk Factors.
Our business operations and the implementation of our business strategy are subject to significant risks inherent in our business,
including, without limitation, the risks and uncertainties described below. The occurrence of any one or more of the risks or
uncertainties described below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows. While we believe we have identified and discussed below the key risk factors that
affect our business, there may be additional risks and uncertainties that are not presently known or that are not currently believed to be
significant that may adversely affect our business, operations, industry, financial position and financial performance in the future.
Since these forward-looking statements are based on estimates and assumptions that are subject to significant business, economic and
competitive uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control or are subject to change, actual results could be materially different.
Changes in consumer discretionary spending and general economic conditions could reduce sales at our stores and have an
adverse effect on our financial results.
Purchases at our stores are discretionary for consumers and, therefore, our results of operations are susceptible to economic
slowdowns and recessions. We are dependent in particular upon discretionary spending by consumers living in the communities in
which our stores are located. A significant portion of our stores are clustered in certain geographic areas. Currently, a total of 166
Chuck E. Cheese’s stores are located in California, Texas and Florida (162 are company-owned and 4 are franchised locations). A
significant weakening in the local economies of these geographic areas, or any of the areas in which our stores are located, may cause
consumers to curtail discretionary spending, which in turn could reduce our Company store sales and have an adverse effect on our
financial results.
The future performance of the U.S. and global economies are uncertain and are directly affected by numerous national and global
financial and other factors that are beyond our control. Increases in credit card, home mortgage and other borrowing costs and declines
in housing values could weaken the U.S. economy leading to a decrease in consumer spending. It is difficult to predict the severity and
the duration of such a decrease. We believe that consumers generally are more willing to make discretionary purchases, including at
our stores, during periods in which favorable economic conditions prevail. Further, fluctuations in the retail price of gasoline and the
potential for future increases in gasoline and other energy costs may affect consumers’ disposable incomes available for entertainment
and dining. Changes in consumer spending habits as a result of a recession or a reduction in consumer confidence are likely to reduce
our sales performance, which could have a material adverse affect on our business, results of operations or financial condition. In
addition, these economic factors may affect our level of spending on planned capital initiatives at our stores, and thereby impact our
future sales.
We may not be successful in the implementation of our business development strategies.
Our continued growth depends, to a significant degree, on our ability to successfully implement our long-term growth strategies.
As part of our long-term growth strategy, we plan to open additional new stores in selected markets, remodel and expand our existing
stores and upgrade the games, rides and entertainment at our existing stores. The opening and success of new Chuck E. Cheese’s
stores is dependent on various factors, including but not limited to the availability of suitable sites, the negotiation of acceptable lease
terms for such locations, our ability to meet construction schedules, our ability to manage such expansion and hire and train personnel
to manage the new stores, the potential cannibalization of sales at our adjacent stores located in the market, as well as general
economic and business conditions. Our ability to successfully open new stores or remodel, expand or upgrade the entertainment at
existing stores will also depend upon the availability of sufficient capital for such purposes, including operating cash flow, our
existing credit facility, future debt financings, future equity offerings or a combination thereof. There can also be no assurance that
we will be successful in opening and operating the number of anticipated new stores on a timely or profitable basis. There can be no
assurance that we can continue to successfully remodel or expand our existing facilities or upgrade the games and entertainment. Our
growth is also dependent on our ability to continually evolve and update our business model to anticipate and respond to changing
customer needs and competitive conditions. There can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully anticipate changes in
competitive conditions or customer needs or that the market will accept our business model.
Part of our growth strategy depends on our ability to attract new international franchisees to recently opened markets and the
ability of these franchisees to open and operate new stores on a profitable basis. As we do not have a history of significant
international growth experience, there can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully execute this strategy in the future.
Delays or failures in identifying desirable franchise partners and opening new franchised stores could adversely affect our planned
growth. Our new franchisees depend on the availability of financing to construct and open new stores. If these franchisees experience
difficulty in obtaining adequate financing for these purposes, our growth strategy and franchise revenues may be adversely affected.
We may incur significant costs in connection with our business development strategies.
Our long-term growth is dependent on the success of strategic initiatives to increase the number of our stores and enhance the
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facilities of existing stores. We incur significant costs each time we open a new store and other expenses when we relocate or remodel
existing stores. The expenses of opening, relocating or remodeling any of our stores may be higher than anticipated. If we are unable
to open or are delayed in opening new stores, we may incur significant costs which may adversely affect our financial results. If we
are unable to remodel or are delayed in remodeling stores, we may incur significant costs which may adversely affect our financial
results.
Negative publicity concerning food quality, health, safety or other issues could adversely affect our financial results.
Food service businesses can be adversely affected by litigation and complaints from guests, consumer groups or government
authorities resulting from food quality, illness, injury or other health concerns or operating issues stemming from one store or a
limited number of stores. Publicity concerning food-borne illnesses, injuries caused by food tampering and safety issues may
negatively affect our operations, reputation and brand. Such publicity may have a significant adverse impact on our financial results.
Our target market of children between the ages of two and 12 and families with young children may be highly sensitive to
adverse publicity that may arise from an actual or perceived negative event within one or more of our stores. There can be no
assurance that we will not experience negative publicity regarding one or more of our stores, and the existence of negative publicity
could materially and adversely affect our image with our customers and our results of operations.
We are subject to competition in both the restaurant and entertainment industries.
We believe that our combined restaurant and entertainment center concept puts us in a niche which combines elements of both
the restaurant and entertainment industries. As a result, to some degree, we compete with entities in both industries. Although other
restaurant chains presently utilize the concept of combined family dining-entertainment operations, we believe these competitors
operate primarily on a local, regional or market-by-market basis. Within the traditional restaurant sector, we compete with other
casual dining restaurants on a nationwide basis with respect to price, quality and speed of service, type and quality of food, personnel,
the number and location of restaurants, attractiveness of facilities, effectiveness of advertising and marketing programs, and new
product development. Such competitive market conditions, including the effectiveness of our advertising and promotion and the
emergence of significant new competition, could adversely affect our operating results.
Disruptions in the financial markets may adversely affect the availability and cost of credit and compromise our ability to
maintain adequate insurance coverage.
Disruptions in the financial markets may adversely affect the availability of credit already arranged and the availability and cost
of credit in the future. Failures of significant financial institutions could adversely affect our access to and reduce the alternative
sources of liquidity needed to operate our business. Any disruption could require us to take measures to conserve cash until the
markets stabilize or until alternative credit arrangements or other funding for our business needs can be arranged. Such measures
could include deferring or curtailing our capital expenditures and other discretionary uses of cash.
We rely on insurance to mitigate our exposure to catastrophic losses we may sustain to our property, claims by our employees,
customers or other third parties. Although we have historically obtained adequate levels of insurance coverage through well rated and
capitalized firms, disruptions in the financial markets may affect our ability to obtain coverage under existing policies or purchase
insurance under new policies at reasonable rates in the future. Additionally, we are potentially at risk if our insurance carriers become
insolvent. As a result, we could potentially be exposed to financial losses, which could adversely affect our results of operations.
We are dependent on the service of certain key personnel.
The success of our business is highly dependent upon the continued employment of Richard M. Frank, our Executive Chairman,
Michael H. Magusiak, our President and Chief Executive Officer, and other members of our senior management team. Although the
Company has entered into employment agreements with each of Mr. Frank and Mr. Magusiak, they can voluntarily leave the
Company at any time and the loss of the services of either of such individuals could have a material adverse effect upon our business
and development. Our success will also depend upon our ability to retain and attract additional skilled management personnel to our
senior management team and at our operational level. There can be no assurances that we will be able to retain the services of Messrs.
Frank or Magusiak, senior members of our management team or the required operational support at the store level in the future.
We may experience an increase in food, labor and other operating costs.
The performance of our stores is affected by changes in the costs for food products we purchase, including cheese, dough,
chicken, and beef. The commodity prices for these food products vary throughout the year and may be affected by changes in demand,
supply and other factors beyond our control. A material increase in our food costs could negatively affect our profit margins and
adversely affect our financial results.
A significant number of our store-level employees are subject to various minimum wage requirements. Several states and cities in
which we operate stores have established a minimum wage higher than the federally mandated minimum wage. There may be similar
increases implemented in other jurisdictions in which we operate or seek to operate. Changes in the minimum wage could increase our
labor costs and may have an adverse effect on our profit margins and our financial results.
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The performance of our stores is also adversely affected by increases in the price of utilities on which the stores depend, such as
natural gas, whether as a result of inflation, shortages or interruptions in supply, or otherwise. Our business also incurs significant
costs for and including among other things, insurance, marketing, taxes, real estate, borrowing and litigation, all of which could
increase due to inflation, rising interest rates, changes in laws, competition, or other events beyond our control.
Changes in consumers’ health, nutrition and dietary preferences could adversely affect our financial results.
Our industry is affected by consumer preferences and perceptions. Changes in prevailing health or dietary preferences and
perceptions may cause consumers to avoid certain products we offer in favor of alternative or healthier foods. If consumer eating
habits change significantly and we are unable to respond with appropriate menu offerings, it could adversely affect our financial
results.
Public health issues may adversely affect our financial results.
Our business may be impacted by certain public health issues including epidemics, pandemics and the rapid spread of certain
illness and contagious diseases (e.g., H1N1 influenza A virus, commonly referred to as the ―swine flu‖). To the extent that our guests
feel uncomfortable visiting public locations, particularly locations with a large number of children, due to a perceived risk of exposure
to a public health issue, we could experience a reduction in guest traffic, which could adversely affect our financial results.
We are subject to risks from disruption of our commodity distribution system.
Any disruption in our commodity distribution system could adversely affect our financial results. We use a single vendor to
distribute most of the products and supplies used in our stores. Any failure by this vendor to adequately distribute products or
supplies to our stores could increase our costs and have a material adverse affect on our financial results and our operations.
Our procurement of games and rides is dependent upon a few global providers.
Our ability to continue to procure new games, rides and other entertainment-related equipment is important to our business
strategy. The number of suppliers from which we can purchase games, rides and other entertainment-related equipment is limited due
to industry consolidation over the past several years coupled with a lower overall global demand. To the extent that the number of
suppliers continues to decline, we could be subject to the risk of distribution delays, pricing pressure, lack of innovation and other
associated risks.
Our business is highly seasonal and quarterly results may fluctuate significantly as a result of this seasonality.
We have experienced, and in the future could experience, quarterly variations in revenues and profitability as a result of a variety
of factors, many of which are outside our control, including the timing of school vacations, holidays and changing weather conditions.
We typically generate higher sales volumes and profitability in the first and third quarters of each fiscal year compared to the second
and fourth quarters. If there is a material decrease in the guest traffic in our stores during the first and third quarters of the year, our
operating results will be adversely affected for that quarter and further, may have an adverse effect on our financial results for the
fiscal year.
Our stores may be adversely affected by local conditions, natural disasters and other events.
Certain regions in which our stores are located may be subject to adverse local conditions, natural disasters and other events. If
severe weather, such as heavy snowfall or extreme temperatures, discourages or restricts customers in a particular region from
traveling to our stores, our sales could be adversely affected. If severe weather conditions occur during the first and third quarters of
the year, the adverse impact to our sales and profitability could be even greater than at other times during the year because we
generate a significant portion of our sales and profits during these periods. Natural disasters including tornadoes, hurricanes and
earthquakes may damage our stores or other operations which may adversely affect the financial results of the Company. Additionally,
demographic shifts in the areas where our stores are located could adversely impact our sales and results of operations.
We are subject to risks in connection with owning and leasing real estate.
As an owner and lessee of the land and/or building for our Company-owned stores, we are subject to all of the risks generally
associated with owning and leasing real estate, including changes in the supply and demand for real estate in general and the supply
and demand for the use of the stores. Any obligation to continue making rental payments with respect to leases for closed stores could
adversely affect our financial results.
We may not be able to adequately protect our trademarks or other proprietary rights.
We own certain common law trademark rights and a number of federal and international trademark and service mark registrations
and proprietary rights relating to our operations. We believe that our trademarks and other proprietary rights are important to our
success and our competitive position. We, therefore, devote appropriate resources to the protection of our trademarks and proprietary
rights. The protective actions that we take, however, may not be enough to prevent unauthorized usage or imitation by others, which
could harm our image, brand or competitive position and, if we commence litigation to enforce our rights, we may incur significant
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legal fees.
We cannot be assured that third parties will not claim that our trademarks or menu offerings infringe upon their proprietary rights.
Any such claim, whether or not it has merit, may result in costly litigation, cause delays in introducing new menu items in the future,
interfere with our international development agreements or require us to enter into royalty or licensing agreements. As a result, any
such claim could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and financial position.
We are subject to various government regulations which may adversely affect our operations and financial performance.
The development and operation of our stores are subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations in many areas of
our business, including, but not limited to, those that impose restrictions, levy a fee or tax, or require a permit or license, or other
regulatory approval. Difficulties or failure in obtaining required permits, licenses or other regulatory approvals could delay or prevent
the opening of a new store, and the suspension of, or inability to renew, a license or permit could interrupt operations at an existing
store. We are also subject to laws governing our relationship with employees, including minimum wage requirements, overtime,
health insurance mandates, working and safety conditions, immigration status requirements, and child labor laws. Additionally,
potential changes in federal labor laws, including ―card check‖ regulations, could result in portions of our workforce being subjected
to greater organized labor influence. This could result in an increase to our labor costs. A significant portion of our store personnel are
paid at rates related to the minimum wage established by federal, state and municipal law. Increases in such minimum wage result in
higher labor costs, which may be partially offset by price increases and operational efficiencies. Additionally, we are subject to certain
laws and regulations that govern our handling of customers’ personal information. A failure to protect the integrity and security of our
customers’ personal information could expose us to litigation, as well as materially damage our reputation with our customers. While
we endeavor to comply with all applicable laws and regulations, governmental and regulatory bodies may change such laws and
regulations in the future, which may require us to incur substantial cost increases. If we fail to comply with applicable laws and
regulations, we may be subject to various sanctions, and/or penalties and fines or may be required to cease operations until we achieve
compliance, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial results and operations.
We face litigation risks from customers, employees, franchisees and other third parties in the ordinary course of business.
Our business is subject to the risk of litigation by customers, current and former employees, suppliers, stockholders or others
through private actions, class actions, administrative proceedings, regulatory actions or other litigation. The outcome of litigation,
particularly class action lawsuits and regulatory actions, is difficult to assess or quantify. Plaintiffs in these types of lawsuits may seek
recovery of very large or indeterminate amounts, and the magnitude of the potential loss relating to such lawsuits may remain
unknown for substantial periods of time. The cost to defend future litigation may be significant. There may also be adverse publicity
associated with litigation that could decrease customer acceptance of our food or entertainment offerings, regardless of whether the
allegations are valid or whether we are ultimately found liable.
We are continually subject to risks from litigation and regulatory action regarding advertising to our market of children between
the ages of two and 12 years old. In addition, since certain of our stores serve alcoholic beverages, we are subject to ―dram shop‖
statutes. These statutes generally allow a person injured by an intoxicated person to recover damages from an establishment that
wrongfully served alcoholic beverages to the intoxicated person. Although we believe we are adequately covered by insurance, a
judgment against us under a ―dram shop‖ statute in excess of the liability covered could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.
Under certain circumstances plaintiffs may file certain types of claims which may not be covered by insurance. In some cases,
plaintiffs may seek punitive damages which may also not be covered by insurance. Any litigation we face could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
We face risks with respect to product liability claims and product recalls.
We purchase merchandise from third-parties and offer this merchandise to customers in exchange for prize tickets or for sale.
This merchandise could be subject to recalls and other actions by regulatory authorities. Changes in laws and regulations could also
impact the type of merchandise we offer to our customers. We have experienced, and may in the future experience, issues that result in
recalls of merchandise. In addition, individuals have asserted claims, and may in the future assert claims, that they have sustained
injuries from third-party merchandise offered by us, and we may be subject to future lawsuits relating to these claims. There is a risk
that these claims or liabilities may exceed, or fall outside of the scope of, our insurance coverage. Any of the issues mentioned above
could result in damage to our reputation, diversion of development and management resources, or reduced sales and increased costs,
any of which could harm our business.
We are dependent on certain information technology systems and technologies which may be compromised.
The operation of our business is dependent upon the integrity, security and successful functioning of our computer networks and
information systems, including the point-of-sales systems in our stores, data centers that process transactions and various software
applications used in our operations. Damage to, or interruption or failure of these systems could result in losses due to disruption of
our business operations. These adverse situations could lead to loss of sales or profits or cause us to incur additional development
costs. In addition, despite our efforts to secure our computer networks and information systems, security could be compromised or
confidential information could be misappropriated resulting in a loss of customers’ personal information, negative publicity, harm to
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our business and reputation or cause us to incur costs to reimburse third parties for damages.
Unanticipated conditions in foreign markets may adversely affect our ability to operate effectively in those markets.
In addition to our stores in the United States, we currently own or franchise stores in Canada, Puerto Rico, Guam, Guatemala,
Chile, Saudi Arabia and the United Arab Emirates. We and our franchisees are subject to the regulatory and economic and political
conditions of any foreign market in which we and our franchisees operate stores. Any change in the laws and regulations and
economic and political stability of these foreign markets may adversely affect our financial results. Changes in foreign markets that
may affect our financial results include, but are not limited to, taxation, inflation, currency fluctuations, political instability, war,
increased regulations and quotas, tariffs and other protectionist measures. Additionally, our long-term growth strategy includes
expanding into additional foreign markets in the future. To the extent unfavorable conditions exist in the foreign markets we plan to
expand into, we and our international franchise partners may not be successful in opening the number of anticipated new stores on a
timely and profitable basis. Delays or failures in opening new foreign market store locations could adversely affect our planned
growth.
ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.
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ITEM 2.

Properties.

The following table summarizes information regarding the number and location of stores we and our franchisees operated as of
January 2, 2011:
Company Owned
Stores

Franchised
Stores

Alabama ...........................................................
Alaska ..............................................................
Arizona ...........................................................
Arkansas .........................................................
California ........................................................
Colorado .........................................................
Connecticut .....................................................
Delaware .........................................................
Florida .............................................................
Georgia ...........................................................
Hawaii .............................................................
Idaho ...............................................................
Illinois .............................................................
Indiana ............................................................
Iowa ................................................................
Kansas .............................................................
Kentucky .........................................................
Louisiana ........................................................
Maine ..............................................................
Maryland .........................................................
Massachusetts .................................................
Michigan .........................................................
Minnesota ........................................................
Mississippi ......................................................
Missouri ...........................................................
Montana ...........................................................
Nebraska .........................................................
Nevada .............................................................
New Hampshire ...............................................
New Jersey ......................................................
New Mexico ....................................................
New York ........................................................
North Carolina ................................................
North Dakota ...................................................
Ohio .................................................................
Oklahoma ........................................................
Oregon .............................................................
Pennsylvania ....................................................
Rhode Island ....................................................
South Carolina .................................................
South Dakota ...................................................
Tennessee ........................................................
Texas ...............................................................
Utah .................................................................
Virginia ............................................................
Washington ......................................................
West Virginia ...................................................
Wisconsin ........................................................

7
1
2
6
77
10
6
2
25
16
1
22
14
5
4
5
9
1
14
11
18
6
3
8
2
6
2
14
3
22
13
19
3
1
23
1
7
2
12
60
11
9
1
9

1
7
4
1
2
1
2
1
2
1
1
3
3
4
3
-

8
1
9
6
81
10
7
2
25
16
2
1
22
14
5
4
5
10
1
14
11
18
6
5
8
1
2
6
2
14
3
22
15
1
20
3
4
23
1
7
2
12
60
3
15
12
1
9

Total domestic ....................................
International

493

36

529

Canada .............................................................
Chile ................................................................
Guam ...............................................................
Guatemala ........................................................
Puerto Rico ......................................................
Saudi Arabia ....................................................
United Arab Emirates ......................................

14
-

2
1
2
3
2
1

14
2
1
2
3
2
1

Total international ...............................

14

11

25

Total system ........................................

507

47

554

Domestic

13

Total

Company Store Leases
Of the 507 Company-owned Chuck E. Cheese's stores as of January 2, 2011, 59 occupy owned premises and 448 are leased.
The terms of our store leases vary in length from lease to lease, although a typical lease provides for an initial primary term of 10
years, with two additional five-year options to renew. As of January 2, 2011, the current lease terms (i.e., before consideration of
available renewal option periods) of our store leases will expire on various dates through 2028 and provide renewal options that expire
at various dates through 2043, as described in the table below.

Current Lease Term to Expire
Month-to-month ......................................
2011 .........................................................
2012 .........................................................
2013 .........................................................
2014 .........................................................
2015 .........................................................
2016 through 2028...................................

Number
of Stores
6
26
39
44
53
68
212

Available
Renewal Options
Expiring Through
-2013 to 2031
2017 to 2032
2016 to 2033
2019 to 2034
2020 to 2035
2021 to 2043

These leases generally require us to pay the cost of repairs, insurance and real estate taxes and, in some instances, may provide
for additional rent equal to the amount by which a percentage of revenues exceed the minimum rent. It is common for us to take
possession of leased premises prior to the commencement of rent payments for the purpose of constructing leasehold improvements.
Corporate Office and Warehouse Facilities
We lease a 76,556 square foot office building in Irving, Texas which serves as our corporate office and support services center.
This lease expires in May 2015, with options to renew through May 2025.
We also lease a total of 146,142 square feet of warehouse space in Topeka, Kansas which primarily serves as storage and
refurbishing facilities for our store fixtures and game equipment. The leases for this space expire in August and September 2013,
respectively.
ITEM 3.

Legal Proceedings.

From time to time, we are involved in various inquiries, investigations, claims, lawsuits, and other legal proceedings that are
incidental to the conduct of our business. These matters typically involve claims from customers, employees or other third parties
involved in operational issues common to the retail, restaurant and entertainment industries. Such matters typically represent actions
with respect to contracts, intellectual property, taxation, employment, employee benefits, personal injuries and other matters. A
number of such claims may exist at any given time and there are currently a number of claims and legal proceedings pending against
us.
In the opinion of our management, after consultation with legal counsel, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to claims or
proceedings currently pending against us is not expected to have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.
ITEM 4.

(Removed and Reserved).
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PART II
ITEM 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.
Market Information
Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "CEC." The following table sets forth the highest
and lowest sale price for our common stock during each quarterly period within the two most recent fiscal years, as reported on the
New York Stock Exchange:
Fiscal 2010
Fiscal 2009
High
Low
High
Low
1st Quarter.........................................................
2nd Quarter .......................................................
3rd Quarter ........................................................
4th Quarter ........................................................

$
$
$
$

38.56
41.79
37.38
41.36

$
$
$
$

31.93
34.39
30.44
32.51

$
$
$
$

27.50
34.77
34.53
33.23

$
$
$
$

19.29
23.54
25.41
24.69

As of February 14, 2011, there were an aggregate of 20,325,514 shares of our common stock outstanding and approximately
1,910 stockholders of record. The number of stockholders of record does not include a substantially greater number of beneficial
holders of our common stock, whose shares are held in ―street name‖ with brokers, banks and other financial institutions.
Dividends and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
On February 22, 2011, our Board of Directors (―Board‖) approved the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend of $0.20 per share,
or $0.80 per share for each year. Due to the timing of the Board’s decision, dividends paid during the 2011 fiscal year are expected to
be $0.60 per share. Our first quarterly dividend of $0.20 per share will be paid on April 21, 2011 to shareholders of record on March
24, 2011. We expect to continue to pay quarterly dividends. However, there can be no assurance that future dividends will be declared
or paid. The actual declaration and payment of future dividends, the amount of any such dividends, and the establishment of record
and payment dates, if any, is subject to final determination by the Board each quarter after its review of our then-current strategy,
applicable debt covenants, and financial performance and position, among other things. See ―Item 1A. Risk Factors‖ for a discussion
of factors that might affect our financial performance and compliance with debt covenants, including covenants that affect our ability
to pay dividends. Also see ―Note 6. Revolving Credit Facility‖ of our consolidated financial statements in this annual report on Form
10-K.
The following table presents information related to repurchases of our common stock during the fourth quarter of 2010 and the
maximum dollar value of shares that may yet be purchased pursuant to our stock repurchase program:
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Period
October 4 – October 31, 2010..............................................
November 1 – November 28, 2010......................................
November 29, 2010 – January 2, 2011 ................................
Total ...............................................................................

Total
Number
of Shares
Purchased(1)
190
260,811
6,330
267,331

Average
Price Paid
Per Share(1)
$
$
$
$

33.19
38.13
39.46
38.16

Total
Number of
Shares
Purchased
As Part of
Publicly
Announced
Plans or
Programs
260,700
6,330
267,030

Maximum Dollar
Value of Shares
that May Yet Be
Purchased
Under the Plans
or Programs(2)
$
$
$
$

151,318,128
141,376,147
141,126,355
141,126,355

______________
(1)
For the periods ended October 31 and November 28, 2010, the total number of shares purchased included 190 shares and 111 shares,
respectively, tendered by employees and non-employee directors at an average price per share of $33.19 and $35.75, respectively, to
satisfy tax withholding requirements on the vesting of restricted stock awards, which are not deducted from shares available to be
purchased under our stock repurchase program. Shares tendered by employees and non-employee directors to satisfy tax withholding
requirements were considered purchased at the closing price of our common stock on the date of vesting.
(2)
We may repurchase shares of our common stock under a plan authorized by our Board of Directors (the ―Board‖). On July 25, 2005, the
Board approved a stock repurchase program which authorized us to repurchase from time to time up to $400 million of our common stock
and on October 22, 2007 and October 27, 2009 authorized $200 million increases each. The stock repurchase program, which does not
have a stated expiration date, authorizes us to make repurchases in the open market, through accelerated share repurchases or in privately
negotiated transactions.

Pursuant to our revolving credit facility agreement, there are restrictions on the amount of our repurchases of our common stock
and cash dividends that we may pay on our common stock based on certain financial covenants and criteria. We currently plan to
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utilize our earnings to finance anticipated capital expenditures, reduce our outstanding debt, pay dividends and potentially repurchase
our common stock. See the discussion of our revolving credit facility under Item 7. ―Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources—Debt Financing‖ and under
Note 6. ―Revolving Credit Facility‖ to our consolidated financial statements under Item 8. ―Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data.‖
Stock Performance Graph
The graph below compares the annual change in the cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock over the last five
fiscal years ended January 2, 2011, with the cumulative total return on the NYSE Composite Index and the S&P SmallCap 600
Restaurants Index. The comparison assumes an investment of $100 on January 1, 2006 in our common stock and in each of the
foregoing indices and assumes the reinvestment of dividends. Our stock price performance shown in the graph below may not be
indicative of future stock price performance.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data.
The following selected financial data presented below should be read in conjunction with Item 7. ―Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations‖ and our consolidated financial statements under Item 8. ―Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.‖

Statement of Earnings Data:
Company store sales ....................................................................
Franchise fees and royalties .........................................................

Fiscal Year(1)
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
(in thousands, except per share and store number amounts)
$

813,133
4,115

$

814,563
3,783

$

810,693
3,816

$

781,665
3,657

$

769,241
3,312

Total revenues ........................................................................

817,248

818,346

814,509

785,322

772,553

Company store operating costs:
Cost of food, beverage, entertainment and merchandise
(exclusive of items shown separately below) .....................
Labor expenses.......................................................................
Depreciation and amortization ...............................................
Rent expense ..........................................................................
Other operating expenses .......................................................

124,882
222,337
79,716
70,425
128,075

128,245
223,084
77,101
67,695
123,986

131,416
223,331
74,805
65,959
119,990

126,413
214,147
70,701
63,734
113,789

121,808
210,010
64,292
60,333
106,025

Total Company store operating costs .................................
Advertising expense .....................................................................
General and administrative expenses ...........................................
Asset impairments ........................................................................

625,435
35,282
50,693
936

620,111
36,641
50,629
-

615,501
34,736
55,970
282

588,784
30,651
51,705
9,638

562,468
32,253
53,037
3,910

Total operating costs and expenses ....................................

712,346

707,381

706,489

680,778

651,668

Operating income .........................................................................

104,902

110,965

108,020

104,544

120,885

Interest expense............................................................................

12,142

12,017

17,389

13,170

9,508

Income before income taxes.........................................................

92,760

98,948

90,631

91,374

111,377

Income taxes (2) ............................................................................

38,726

37,754

34,137

35,453

43,120

Net income ...................................................................................

$

54,034

$

61,194

$

56,494

$

55,921

$

68,257

(3)

Per Share Data:
Earnings per share:
Basic ......................................................................................
Diluted (4) ...............................................................................

$
$

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic ......................................................................................
Diluted ...................................................................................
Balance Sheet Data (end of year):
Cash and cash equivalents ............................................................
Total assets...................................................................................
Revolving credit facility borrowings ............................................
Total debt (5) .................................................................................
Stockholders’ equity ....................................................................

2.55
2.55

$
$

21,163
21,204
$

19,269
778,029
377,000
388,262
158,062

Number of Stores (end of year):
Company-owned ..........................................................................
Franchised ....................................................................................

507
47
554

2.68
2.67

$
$

22,835
22,933
$

17,361
744,266
354,300
365,810
167,913

2.37
2.33

$
$

23,825
24,199
$

497
48
545

17,769
747,440
401,850
414,058
128,586
495
46
541

1.79
1.75

$
$

31,237
31,970
$

18,373
737,893
316,800
329,875
217,993

2.08
2.03
32,794
33,623

$

18,308
704,185
168,200
181,781
359,206

490
44
534

484
45
529

______________
(1)

(2)

(3)
(4)
(5)

We operate on a 52 or 53 week fiscal year ending on the Sunday nearest December 31. Fiscal year 2009 was 53 weeks in length and all other
fiscal years presented were 52 weeks.
Income taxes in 2010 included net unfavorable adjustments of $3.0 million, which included $2.4 million we reflected during the second quarter,
primarily resulting from adjustments made to our tax accounts identified as a result of an IRS examination of our 2006 and 2007 tax years, various
return-to-provision adjustments, and offsetting favorable adjustments related to California enterprise zone tax credits.
No cash dividends on common stock were declared in any of the years presented.
We estimate that the additional 53rd operating week in our 2009 fiscal year benefited 2009 diluted earnings per share by approximately $0.17.
Total debt includes our outstanding revolving credit facility borrowings and capital lease obligations.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures
We report and discuss our operating results using financial measures consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
("GAAP"). From time to time in the course of financial presentations, earnings conference calls or otherwise, we may disclose certain
non-GAAP financial measures such as Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (―EBITDA‖) presented below.
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This non-GAAP financial measure should not be viewed as an alternative or substitute for our reported GAAP results.
The following table sets forth a reconciliation of net income to EBITDA and EBITDA expressed as a percentage of total revenues
for the periods shown:
Fiscal Year
2009
2008
2007
(in thousands, except percentages)

2010

2006

Revenues ......................................................................................

$

817,248

$

818,346

$

814,509

$

785,322

$

772,553

Net income ...................................................................................
Add: .............................................................................................
Income taxes ............................................................................
Interest expense ........................................................................
Depreciation and amortization .................................................

$

54,034

$

61,194

$

56,494

$

55,921

$

68,257

EBITDA.............................................................................

$

EBITDA as a percent of revenues ................................................

38,726
12,142
80,679
185,581
22.7%

37,754
12,017
78,071
$

189,036
23.1%

34,137
17,389
75,445
$

183,465
22.5%

35,453
13,170
71,919
$

176,463
22.5%

43,120
9,508
65,392
$

186,277
24.1%

We define EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, as net income before income taxes, interest expense and depreciation and
amortization. EBITDA as defined herein may differ from similarly titled measures presented by other companies. We believe that
EBITDA provides useful information to us, our investors and other interested parties about our operating performance, our capacity to
incur and service debt, fund capital expenditures and other corporate uses. EBITDA as presented above, differs from the definition of
consolidated EBITDA utilized in connection with the financial covenant ratios contained in our revolving credit facility agreement.
See the discussion of our revolving credit facility under Item 7. ―Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources—Debt Financing.‖
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ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (―MD&A‖) is intended to provide the
readers of our financial statements with a narrative from the perspective of our management on our financial condition, results of
operations, liquidity and certain other factors that may affect our future results. Our MD&A is presented in the following sections:
Executive Summary
Overview of Operations
Results of Operations
Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Recently Issued Accounting Guidance
Our MD&A should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes included in Part II, Item 8
―Financial Statements and Supplementary Data‖ of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
We operate on a 52 or 53 week fiscal year that ends on the Sunday nearest to December 31. Each quarterly period has 13 weeks,
except for a 53 week year when the fourth quarter has 14 weeks. References to 2010, 2009 and 2008 are for the fiscal years ended
January 2, 2011, January 3, 2010 and December 28, 2008, respectively. Our 2009 fiscal year consisted of 53 weeks and our 2010 and
2008 fiscal years each consisted of 52 weeks.
53rd Week Impact
Our 2009 fiscal year consisted of 53 weeks compared to 52 weeks in 2010 and 2008, resulting in one additional operating week
in the fourth quarter of 2009. The favorable impact to total revenues from the additional operating week was approximately $19.5
million and our 2009 comparable store sales benefited 0.5%. We estimate that the additional operating week benefited 2009 diluted
earnings per share approximately $0.17. This benefit was primarily due to the operating leverage obtained from the additional high
sales volume 53rd week, particularly related to certain fixed costs, such as depreciation and amortization and rent, that are recognized
on a monthly basis as opposed to incremental weekly amounts. We believe it is important to understand the impact that this additional
high sales volume week had on our 2009 fiscal year results when analyzing year over year performance for both 2010 compared to
2009 and 2009 compared to 2008.
Executive Summary
Company store sales decreased 0.2% to $813.1 million during 2010 compared to $814.6 million in 2009.
- Company store sales decline during 2010 was due to an additional operating week in 2009.
- Comparable store sales on a same calendar week basis increased 1.5%.
- Comparable store sales on a fiscal week basis increased 0.7%.
- Weighted average Company-owned store count increased by approximately four stores.
- Menu prices increased on average 2.6%.
Operating income as a percentage of total revenues decreased 0.8 percentage points to 12.8%, reflecting the deleveraging of
margins due to the additional operating week in 2009, increases in other operating expenses and asset impairments, partially
offset by lower cost of sales and advertising.
Our 2010 effective income tax rate included net unfavorable adjustments of $3.0 million, which included $2.4 million we
reflected during the second quarter, primarily resulting from adjustments made to our tax accounts identified as a result of an
Internal Revenue Service (―IRS‖) examination of our 2006 and 2007 tax years, various return-to-provision adjustments, and
offsetting favorable adjustments related to California enterprise zone tax credits. As a result, the 2010 effective tax rate increased
to 41.7% during 2010 compared to 38.2% in 2009.
Diluted earnings per share decreased to $2.55 in 2010 compared to $2.67 in 2009. Fiscal year 2010 earnings per share
benefited from our cumulative repurchase of approximately 4.0 million shares of our common stock since the beginning of
2009, including approximately 2.2 million shares repurchased during fiscal year 2010.
Outstanding borrowings under our revolving credit facility increased $22.7 million to $377.0 million, primarily due to our
increase in share repurchases during 2010.
We completed 223 existing store capital initiatives, including 15 major remodels, 28 expansions and 180 game
enhancements.
We opened 12 Company-owned store locations, including five stores acquired from franchisees and two stores we relocated.
Our franchisees opened four new stores, including three international store locations in Guam, Chile and Saudi Arabia.
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Overview of Operations
We develop, operate and franchise family dining and entertainment centers under the name ―Chuck E. Cheese’s‖ in 48 states and
seven foreign countries or territories. Chuck E. Cheese’s stores feature musical and comic entertainment by robotic and animated
characters, arcade-style and skill-oriented games, video games, rides and other activities intended to appeal to our primary customer
base of families with children between two and 12 years of age. All of our stores offer dining selections consisting of a variety of
beverages, pizzas, sandwiches, appetizers, a salad bar, and desserts.
The following table summarizes information regarding the number of Company-owned and franchised stores for the periods
presented:
Fiscal Year
2010
2009
2008
Number of Company-owned stores:
Beginning of period.......................................................................................................
New (1) ...........................................................................................................................
Acquired from franchisees ............................................................................................
Closed............................................................................................................................
End of period .................................................................................................................

497
7
5
(2)
507

495
3
(1)
497

490
5
2
(2)
495

Number of franchised stores:
Beginning of period.......................................................................................................
New ...............................................................................................................................
Acquired by the Company.............................................................................................
Closed............................................................................................................................
End of period .................................................................................................................

48
4
(5)
47

46
3
(1)
48

44
4
(2)
46

______________
(1)
The number of new Company-owned stores during 2010 and 2008 included two stores and one store, respectively, we relocated.

Comparable store sales. We define comparable store sales as the percentage change in sales for our domestic Company-owned
stores that have been open for at least 18 months as of the beginning of each respective fiscal year or operated for at least 12 months
for acquired stores (our ―comparable store base‖). Comparable store sales is a key performance indicator used within our industry and
is a critical factor when evaluating our performance as it is indicative of acceptance of our strategic initiatives and local economic and
consumer trends.
As a result of the 53 week fiscal year in 2009, our 2010 fiscal year began one week later than our 2009 fiscal year and excluded a
seasonally high sales volume week. In order to provide useful information to investors to better analyze our business, we have
provided comparable store sales presented on both a fiscal week basis and calendar week basis (see ―Fiscal Year 2010 Compared to
Fiscal Year 2009‖ below). Comparable store sales on a fiscal week basis compares the results of our 2010 and 2009 fiscal years.
Comparable store sales for the 2010 fiscal year on a calendar week basis compares the results for the period from January 4, 2010
through January 2, 2011 (weeks 1 through 52 of our 2010 fiscal year) to the results for the period from January 5, 2009 through
January 3, 2010 (weeks 2 through 53 of our 2009 fiscal year). We believe comparable store sales calculated on a same calendar week
basis is more indicative of the health of our business. However, we also recognize that comparable store sales growth calculated on a
fiscal week basis is a useful measure when analyzing year-over-year changes in our consolidated financial statements.
The following table summarizes information regarding our average annual comparable store sales and comparable store base:
2010

Fiscal Year
2009

2008

(in thousands, except store number
amounts)

Average annual sales per comparable store (1) .................................................................... $
Number of stores included in our comparable store base ...................................................

1,614 $
473

1,632 $
467

1,633
453

______________
(1)
Average annual sales per comparable store have been calculated based on the average weekly sales of our comparable store base. The
amount of average annual sales per comparable store cannot be used to compute year-over-year comparable store sales increases or
decreases due to the change in comparable store base. Additionally, the average annual sales amount for 2009 includes the impact of an
additional high sales volume 53rd week. Excluding the 53rd week in 2009, the average annual sales per comparable store was $1,593 (in
thousands).

Revenues. Our primary source of revenues is from sales at our Company-owned stores (―Company store sales‖) and consists of
the sale of food, beverages, game-play tokens and merchandise. A portion of Company store sales comes from sales of value-priced
combination packages generally comprised of food, beverage and game tokens (―package deals‖), which we promote through in-store
menu pricing or coupon offerings. Food and beverage sales include all revenue recognized with respect to stand-alone food and
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beverage sales as well as the portion of revenue that is allocated from package deals. Entertainment and merchandise sales include all
revenue recognized with respect to stand-alone game token sales as well as the portion of revenue that is allocated from package deals.
This revenue caption also includes sales of merchandise at our stores. We allocate the revenue recognized from the sale of our
package deals between ―Food and beverage sales‖ and ―Entertainment and merchandise sales‖ based upon the price charged for each
component when it is sold separately or, in limited circumstances, our best estimate of selling price if a component is not sold on a
stand-alone basis, which we believe approximates each component’s fair value.
Franchise fees and royalties include royalties charged to franchisees based on a percentage of a franchised store’s sales, area
development and initial franchise fees received from franchisees to establish new stores and other miscellaneous sales to franchisees.
Company store operating costs. Certain costs and expenses relate only to the operation of our Company-owned stores and are as
follows:
Cost of food and beverage includes all direct costs of food, beverages and costs of related paper and birthday supplies, less
rebates from suppliers;
Cost of entertainment and merchandise includes all direct costs of prizes provided and merchandise sold to our customers, as well
as the cost of tickets dispensed to customers and redeemed for prize items;
Labor expenses consist of salaries and wages, related payroll taxes and benefits for store personnel;
Depreciation and amortization includes expenses that pertain directly to our store assets primarily consisting of leasehold
improvements, game and ride equipment, furniture, fixtures and other equipment;
Rent expense includes lease costs for Company-owned stores, excluding other occupancy costs (e.g., common area maintenance
(―CAM‖) charges, property taxes, etc.); and
Other store operating expenses include utilities, repair costs, liability and property insurance, CAM charges, property taxes,
preopening expenses, store asset disposal gains and losses, and all other costs directly related to the operation of a store.
Our ―Cost of food and beverage‖ and ―Cost of entertainment and merchandise‖ mentioned above do not include an allocation of
(i) store employee payroll, related taxes and benefit costs and (ii) depreciation and amortization expense associated with Companystore assets. We believe that presenting store-level labor costs and depreciation and amortization expense in the aggregate provides the
most informative financial reporting presentation. Our rationale for excluding such costs is as follows:


based on the fact that our store employees are trained to sell and attend to both our dining and entertainment operations, we
believe it would be difficult and potentially misleading to assign labor costs between food and beverage sales and
entertainment and merchandise sales; and



while certain assets are individually dedicated to either our food service operations or game activities, we also have
significant capital investments in shared depreciating assets, such as leasehold improvements, point-of-sale systems,
animatronics, and showroom fixtures. Therefore, we believe it would be difficult and potentially misleading to assign
depreciation and amortization expense between food and beverage sales and entertainment and merchandise sales.

Advertising expense. Advertising expense includes production costs for television commercials, newspaper inserts, Internet
advertising, coupons and media expenses for national and local advertising, with offsetting contributions from our franchisees.
General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses represent all costs associated with our corporate
office operations, including regional and district management and corporate personnel payroll and benefits, depreciation and
amortization of corporate assets and other administrative costs not directly related to the operation of a store location.
Asset impairments. Asset impairments (if any) represent non-cash charges we record to write down the carrying amount of longlived assets within stores that are not expected to generate sufficient projected cash flows in order to recover their net book value.
Seasonality and variations in quarterly results. Our operating results fluctuate seasonally due to the timing of school vacations,
holidays and changing weather conditions. As a result, we typically generate higher sales volumes during the first and third quarters of
each fiscal year. School operating schedules, holidays and weather conditions may affect sales volumes in some operating regions
differently than others. Because of the seasonality of our business, results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results
that may be achieved for the full fiscal year.
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Results of Operations
Historical Results
The following table summarizes our principal sources of Company store sales expressed in dollars and as a percentage of total
Company store sales for the periods presented:
2010

Fiscal Year
2009
(in thousands, except percentages)

2008

Food and beverage sales ...............................................................................$ 398,241
Entertainment and merchandise sales ........................................................... 414,892

49.0%
51.0%

$ 406,635
407,928

49.9%
50.1%

$ 409,895
400,798

50.6%
49.4%

Company store sales .................................................................................$ 813,133

100.0%

$ 814,563

100.0%

$ 810,693

100.0%

The following table summarizes our revenues and expenses expressed in dollars and as a percentage of total revenues (except as
otherwise noted) for the periods presented:
2010

Fiscal Year
2009
(in thousands, except percentages)

2008

Company store sales ..................................................................................... $ 813,133
Franchising fees and royalties ......................................................................
4,115

99.5%
0.5%

$ 814,563
3,783

99.5%
0.5%

$ 810,693
3,816

99.5%
0.5%

Total revenues ...................................................................................... $ 817,248
Company store operating costs:
Cost of food and beverage (1) .................................................................... 90,649
Cost of entertainment and merchandise (2) ................................................ 34,233

100.0%

$ 818,346

100.0%

$ 814,509

100.0%

22.8%
8.3%

91,816
36,429

22.6%
8.9%

96,891
34,525

23.6%
8.6%

124,882
222,337
79,716
70,425
128,075
625,435

15.4%
27.3%
9.8%
8.7%
15.8%
76.9%

128,245
223,084
77,101
67,695
123,986
620,111

15.7%
27.4%
9.5%
8.3%
15.2%
76.1%

131,416
223,331
74,805
65,959
119,990
615,501

16.2%
27.5%
9.2%
8.1%
14.8%
75.9%

35,282
50,693
936
712,346

4.3%
6.2%
0.1%
87.2%

36,641
50,629
707,381

4.5%
6.2%
0.0%
86.4%

34,736
55,970
282
706,489

4.3%
6.9%
0.0%
86.7%

Operating income ..................................................................................... 104,902
Interest expense ........................................................................................ 12,142

12.8%
1.5%

110,965
12,017

13.6%
1.5%

108,020
17,389

13.3%
2.1%

Income before income taxes ................................................................. $ 92,760

11.4%

98,948

12.1%

90,631

11.1%

Cost of food, beverage, entertainment and merchandise (3) ......................
Labor expenses (3) .....................................................................................
Depreciation and amortization (3)..............................................................
Rent expense (3) ........................................................................................
Other store operating expenses (3) .............................................................
Total Company store operating costs (3) ...............................................
Other costs and expenses:
Advertising expense .....................................................................................
General and administrative expenses ............................................................
Asset impairments ........................................................................................
Total operating costs and expenses ......................................................

$

$

______________
(1)
Percent amount expressed as a percentage of food and beverage sales.
(2)
(3)

Percent amount expressed as a percentage of entertainment and merchandise sales.
Percent amount expressed as a percentage of Company store sales.

Due to rounding, percentages presented in the table above may not add. The percentage amounts for the components of cost of food, beverage,
entertainment and merchandise do not sum due to the fact that cost of food and beverage and cost of entertainment and merchandise are expressed as a
percentage of related food and beverage and entertainment and merchandise sales, as opposed to total Company store sales.

Fiscal Year 2010 Compared to Fiscal Year 2009
Revenues
Company store sales decreased 0.2% to $813.1 million during 2010 compared to $814.6 million in 2009 due to the additional 53rd
operating week sales in our 2009 fiscal year of approximately $19.5 million, partially offset by a weighted average net increase of
approximately four Company-owned stores during 2010 and a 0.7% increase in our comparable store sales on a fiscal week basis. On
a same calendar week basis, which we believe to be more indicative of the health of our business, comparable store sales grew 1.5%.
The difference between fiscal week and calendar week comparable store sales is primarily attributable to the effect of the additional
operating week in our 2009 fiscal year which caused the seasonally strong first week of the 2010 calendar week to shift into the fourth
quarter of 2009. Menu prices increased on average approximately 2.6% during 2010. We believe the various strategies we have
implemented, including the ongoing capital initiatives at our stores and our continuing efforts to increase the number of birthday
parties favorably affected our sales during 2010.
Our sales for 2010 also includes a $0.6 million adjustment we recorded in food and beverage sales during the second quarter of
2010 for the initial recognition of breakage income related to unredeemed gift card balances. The initial and ongoing breakage income
amount we recognized in 2010 is not included in either the fiscal week or calendar week comparable store sales figures. Refer to Note
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1. ―Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—Revenue Recognition – Company Store Activities‖ of
our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. ―Financial Statements and Supplementary Data‖ for more information
regarding our initial recognition of gift card breakage income.
Our Company store sales mix was 49.0% food and beverage sales and 51.0% entertainment and merchandise sales during 2010
compared to 49.9% and 50.1% respectively, in 2009. We believe the sales mix shift from food and beverage to entertainment and
merchandise is primarily the result of increased game token sales associated with our token purchase promotions in the current year,
as well as birthday party packages that contained greater components of merchandise and tokens as compared to the packages offered
in 2009.
Company Store Operating Costs
Cost of food and beverage as a percentage of food and beverage sales increased 0.2 percentage points to 22.8% during 2010 from
22.6% in 2009 primarily due to an increase in cheese prices. During 2010, the average price per pound of cheese increased
approximately $0.21, or 16%, compared to prices paid in 2009. This increase was partially offset by menu price increases and the
implementation of certain cost savings initiatives, including reductions in paper supplies.
Cost of entertainment and merchandise as a percentage of entertainment and merchandise sales decreased 0.6 percentage points to
8.3% during 2010 from 8.9% in 2009. This decrease is primarily due to margin pressure associated with incremental prize
merchandise awarded to our guests in 2009 from promotional in-store token distributions, which did not occur in 2010, as well as
from the liquidation of certain prize inventory in the first quarter of 2009. Additionally, during 2010 we reduced the costs associated
with an attraction that dispensed novelty photo cards.
Labor expenses as a percentage of Company store sales decreased 0.1 percentage point to 27.3% during 2010 compared to 27.4%
in 2009 primarily due to improved labor utilization of our hourly labor force during 2010, offsetting a 2.5% increase in average hourly
wage rates at our stores. Partially offsetting this labor improvement were higher incentive compensation associated with our storelevel personnel and increased group medical costs during 2010.
Depreciation and amortization expense related to our stores increased $2.6 million to $79.7 million during 2010 compared to
$77.1 million in 2009 primarily due to the ongoing capital investment initiatives occurring at our existing stores and new store
development.
Store rent expense increased $2.7 million to $70.4 million in 2010 compared to $67.7 million in 2009 primarily due to an increase
in our leased properties resulting from new store development and expansions of existing stores.
Other store operating expenses as a percentage of Company store sales increased 0.6 percentage points to 15.8% during 2010
compared to 15.2% in 2009 primarily due to higher insurance related costs and a charge incurred to transition soft drink suppliers.
Insurance related costs increased approximately $1.7 million, or 0.2 percentage points, during 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to
the unfavorable development of certain general liability claims. Additionally, during 2010, we incurred a charge of approximately
$1.0 million to transition to a new soft drink supplier.
Advertising Expense
Advertising expense as a percentage of total revenues decreased 0.2 percentage points to 4.3% during 2010 from 4.5% in 2009
primarily due to lower television media costs compared to last year and reductions in certain other media expenditures during 2010.
These decreases were partially offset by additional local television advertising during 2010.
Asset Impairments
During 2010, we recognized asset impairment charges of $0.9 million for three of our stores based on the determination that the
stores’ projected performance had been adversely impacted by various economic factors in the markets in which they are located.
Management determined that the estimated fair value of the stores’ long-lived assets (computed as the discounted projected cash flows
throughout each of the stores’ remaining lease term) had declined below their carrying amount. For additional information about these
impairment charges, refer to Note 4. ―Property and Equipment—Asset Impairments‖ of our consolidated financial statements included
in Item 8. ―Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.‖
Interest Expense
Interest expense increased to $12.1 million during 2010 compared to $12.0 million in 2009 due to additional interest accrued
during 2010 resulting from an IRS examination of prior tax years. This increase was partially offset by a decrease in interest expense
incurred on our revolving credit facility, which was primarily attributable to a lower average debt balance outstanding during 2010
compared to 2009. During 2010, the average debt balance outstanding under our revolving credit facility was $335.3 million
compared to $346.3 million during 2009, and our weighted average effective interest rate, including the effect of our interest rate
swap, was unchanged at 2.9% in 2010 and 2009.
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Income Taxes
Our effective income tax rate increased to 41.7% during 2010 compared to 38.2% for 2009. Our 2010 effective income tax rate
included net unfavorable adjustments of $3.0 million, which included $2.4 million we reflected during the second quarter, primarily
resulting from adjustments made to our tax accounts identified as a result of an IRS examination of our 2006 and 2007 tax years,
various return-to-provision adjustments, and offsetting favorable adjustments related to California enterprise zone tax credits.
Diluted Earnings Per Share
Diluted earnings per share decreased to $2.55 per share during 2010 from $2.67 per share in 2009 primarily due to a 11.7%
decrease in our net income, partially offset by a 7.5% decrease in the number of weighted average diluted shares outstanding between
the two periods. As described under the caption ―53rd Week Impact‖ above, we estimate that the additional operating week in 2009
benefited prior year diluted earnings per share by approximately $0.17. Additionally, the decrease in diluted earnings per share
between the two periods was impacted by our repurchase of approximately 4.0 million shares of our common stock since the
beginning of 2009. We estimate that the decrease in the number of weighted average diluted shares outstanding during 2010
attributable solely to these repurchases incrementally benefited our earnings per share in 2010 by approximately $0.19. Our estimate is
based on the weighted average number of shares repurchased since the beginning of 2009 and includes consideration of the estimated
additional interest expense attributable to increased borrowings under our revolving credit facility to finance the repurchases. Our
computation does not include the effect of share repurchases prior to the 2009 fiscal year, or the effect of the issuance of restricted
stock or exercise of stock options subsequent to the beginning of fiscal 2009.
Fiscal Year 2009 Compared to Fiscal Year 2008
Revenues
Company store sales increased 0.5% to $814.6 million during 2009 compared to $810.7 million in 2008 primarily due to the
additional 53rd week sales of approximately $19.5 million and a weighted average net increase of approximately four Company-owned
stores during 2009 as compared to 2008. This increase was partially offset by a decline in our comparable store sales which, including
the impact of the additional 53rd week in 2009, decreased 2.8%. We believe our comparable store sales in 2009 were negatively
impacted by a restraint in consumer spending due to a weakened economic environment, and to a lesser extent the outbreak of the
H1N1 influenza A virus, commonly referred to as the ―swine flu.‖ We believe the greatest impact of the swine flu occurred from April
through June 2009. This negative impact to our comparable store sales was partially offset by menu prices which increased on average
1.6% during 2009. Despite the apparent restraint in consumer spending and added pressure from the swine flu, we believe the
execution of various strategies we have implemented, including the ongoing capital initiatives at our stores and our continuing efforts
to increase the number of birthday parties and fund raising events at our stores worked, in part, to counteract theses negative factors.
Our Company store sales mix was 49.9% food and beverage sales and 50.1% entertainment and merchandise sales during 2009
compared to 50.6% and 49.4%, respectively, in 2008. We believe the shift in sales mix from food and beverage to entertainment and
merchandise is primarily the result of increased sales of promotional package deals and birthday parties containing greater
components of game tokens and merchandise.
Company Store Operating Costs
Cost of food and beverage as a percentage of food and beverage sales decreased 1.0 percentage point to 22.6% during 2009 from
23.6% in 2008 primarily due to a $0.59, or 31%, reduction in the average price per pound of cheese in 2009 compared to prices paid in
2008.
Cost of entertainment and merchandise as a percentage of entertainment and merchandise sales increased 0.3 percentage points to
8.9% during 2009 from 8.6% in 2008 primarily due to a 0.2 percentage point increase in costs associated with an attraction that
dispenses novelty photo cards, and to a lesser extent increased distributions of prize redemption tickets related to specific promotions
during the second and third quarters of 2009.
Labor expense as a percentage of Company store sales decreased 0.1 percentage point to 27.4% during 2009 compared to 27.5%
in 2008 primarily due to improved productivity at the store level and a reduction in store personnel performance-based compensation
costs associated with our Company store sales decline during 2009, largely offset by a 3.4% increase in average hourly wage rates at
our stores.
Depreciation and amortization expense related to our stores increased $2.3 million to $77.1 million during 2009 compared to
$74.8 million in 2008 primarily due to the ongoing capital investment initiatives that occurred at our existing stores and new store
development.
Store rent expense increased $1.7 million to $67.7 million during 2009 compared to $66.0 million in 2008 primarily due to an
increase in the number of leased properties resulting from our new store development and to a lesser extent expansions of existing
stores.
Other store operating expenses as a percentage of Company store sales increased 0.4 percentage points to 15.2% during 2009
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compared to 14.8% in 2008 primarily due to higher repair and maintenance costs and the effect of a $0.8 million gain that we
recognized in 2008 from the sale of property related to our TJ Hartford’s Grill and Bar (―TJ Hartford’s‖). The increase in other store
operating expenses as a percentage of Company store sales was partially offset by a reduction in general insurance costs during 2009
compared to 2008.
Advertising Expense
Advertising expense as a percentage of total revenues increased 0.2 percentage points to 4.5% during 2009 from 4.3% in 2008
primarily due to a combined 0.2 percentage point increase in television advertising and Internet-based media expenditures associated
with our marketing programs in 2009.
General and Administrative Expenses
General and administrative expenses decreased $5.3 million to $50.6 million during 2009 from $56.0 million in 2008 primarily
due to lower performance-based compensation and a decrease in legal related costs. Performance-based compensation associated with
our financial performance for 2009 decreased $3.8 million in 2009 compared to 2008. Litigation related costs decreased
approximately $2.5 million primarily due to the non-recurrence of certain prior year legal matters. These decreases were partially
offset by increases in other corporate office expenses.
Interest Expense
Interest expense decreased to $12.0 million during 2009 compared to $17.4 million in 2008 primarily due to a 120 basis point
decrease in the average effective interest rates incurred and a reduction in the outstanding balance of our revolving credit facility
between the two periods. The weighted average effective interest rate incurred on borrowings under our revolving credit facility was
2.9% during 2009 compared to 4.2% in 2008. During 2009, the average debt balance outstanding under our revolving credit facility
was $346.3 million compared to $358.6 million during 2008.
Income Taxes
Our effective income tax rate was 38.2% and 37.7% for 2009 and 2008, respectively. The increase in our effective income tax
rate was primarily due to the effect of favorable U.S. federal and state tax adjustments we made during 2008, and to a lesser extent
unfavorable tax adjustments in 2009.
Diluted Earnings Per Share
Diluted earnings per share increased to $2.67 per share during 2009 from $2.33 per share in 2008 due to a 8.3% increase in our
net income and a 5.2% decrease in the number of weighted average diluted shares outstanding between the two periods. As described
under the caption ―53rd Week Impact‖ above, we estimate that the additional operating week in 2009 benefited 2009 diluted earnings
per share by approximately $0.17. Additionally, the increase in diluted earnings per share between the two periods was impacted by
our repurchase of approximately 6.7 million shares of our common stock since the beginning of 2008. We estimate that the decrease in
the number of weighted average diluted shares outstanding during 2009 attributable solely to these repurchases incrementally
benefited our earnings per share in 2009 by approximately $0.17. Our estimate is based on the weighted average number of shares
repurchased since the beginning of 2008 and includes consideration of the estimated additional interest expense attributable to
increased borrowings under our revolving credit facility to finance the repurchases. Our computation does not include the effect of
share repurchases prior to fiscal 2008, or the effect of the issuance of restricted stock or exercise of stock options subsequent to the
beginning of fiscal 2008.
Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview of Liquidity
Funds generated by our operating activities, available cash and cash equivalents, and our revolving credit facility continue to be
our most significant sources of liquidity. We believe funds generated from our expected results of operations and available cash and
cash equivalents will be sufficient to finance our business development strategies and capital initiatives for the next year. Our
revolving credit facility is also available for additional working capital needs and investment opportunities. However, in the event of a
material decline in our sales trends or operating margins, there can be no assurance that we will generate cash flows at or above our
current levels. Our ability to access our revolving credit facility is subject to our compliance with the terms and conditions of the
credit facility agreement, including our compliance with certain prescribed financial ratio covenants, as more fully described below.
Our primary uses for cash provided by operating activities relate to planned capital expenditures and servicing our debt. We may
also use cash from operations to pay dividends to our shareholders and make repurchases of our common stock.
Our requirement for working capital is not significant since our store customers pay for their purchases in cash or credit cards at
the time of the sale and the cash from these sales is typically received before related accounts payable to suppliers and our employee
payroll become due. Frequent inventory turnover results in limited investment in inventories and our accounts payable are generally
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due in five to 30 days. As a result of these factors, we are able to operate with a net working capital deficit (current liabilities in excess
of current assets), and we can do so without incurring significant short-term or long-term borrowings. Our net working capital deficit
increased to $1.7 million at January 2, 2011 from $1.0 million at January 3, 2010 primarily due to variations in the timing and amount
of payments for accounts payable and accrued income taxes.
We do not enter into any material development or contractual purchase obligations in connection with our business development
strategy. As a result, with respect to our planned capital expenditures, including spending that pertains to our new store development
and capital initiatives, we believe that we have the flexibility necessary to manage our liquidity by promptly deferring or curtailing our
capital spending.
The following tables present summarized financial information that we believe is helpful in evaluating our liquidity and capital
resources:
Fiscal Year
2010
2009
2008
(in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities ................................................................... $
Net cash used for investing activities .........................................................................
Net cash used for financing activities .........................................................................
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash ........................................................

156,870 $
(102,869)
(52,163)
70

Change in cash and cash equivalents .......................................................................... $

1,908

Interest paid ................................................................................................................ $
Income taxes paid, net ................................................................................................ $

$

11,596 $
41,725 $

154,258 $
(72,931)
(80,568)
(1,167)

144,182
(85,478)
(58,034)
(1,274)

(408) $

(604)

12,317
20,454

$
$

16,542
46,696

At Year End
2010
2009
(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents .................................................................................................................... $
Revolving credit facility borrowings .................................................................................................... $
Available unused commitments under revolving credit facility ........................................................... $

19,269
377,000
162,341

$
$
$

17,361
354,300
185,743

Sources and Uses of Cash – Fiscal Year 2010 Compared to Fiscal Year 2009
Net cash provided by operating activities increased $2.6 million to $156.9 million during 2010 from $154.3 million in 2009. The
increase was primarily attributable to the timing of payments related to accounts payable and accrued income taxes during 2010
compared to 2009 and the receipt of a $2.0 million franchise development fee in 2010.
Our cash interest payments decreased $0.7 million to $11.6 million during 2010 from $12.3 million in 2009 primarily due to a
reduction in the average debt balance outstanding under our revolving credit facility between the two periods.
Our cash payments for income taxes, net of refunds received, increased $21.3 million to $41.7 million during 2010 from $20.5
million in 2009. The increase was primarily due to a decrease in the amount of tax overpayments which are typically applied towards
the following years’ tax returns. The decrease in 2009 overpayments caused an increase in the amount of federal and state estimated
tax payments made during 2010 compared to 2009. The increase was also attributable to fewer refunds received in 2010, including the
effect of a $5.5 million refund of excess federal income taxes we received in 2009, combined with a $2.5 million payment made
during the fourth quarter of 2010 in connection with the settlement of an IRS examination of our 2006 and 2007 tax years. We
currently anticipate receiving an income tax refund of approximately $9.0 million resulting primarily from additional federal ―bonus‖
tax depreciation.
Net cash used in investing activities increased $29.9 million to $102.9 million during 2010 from $72.9 million in 2009, primarily
due to an increase in the number of capital spending initiatives for our existing stores and our new company store development efforts
during 2010. Capital spending initiatives for our existing stores affected 223 stores during 2010 compared to 160 stores in 2009.
Additionally, during 2010 we opened four more new or relocated stores than in 2009. The increase in cash used for investing
activities also includes cash payments associated with our acquisition of five former franchised store locations during 2010.
Net cash used in financing activities decreased $28.4 million to $52.2 million during 2010 from $80.6 million in 2009, primarily
due to a change in the net borrowings under our revolving credit facility during 2010 compared to 2009, partially offset by an increase
in our share repurchase activity and a decrease in proceeds obtained through the exercise of employee stock options. During 2010, we
increased the outstanding borrowings under our revolving credit facility by $22.7 million, compared to 2009 when we made
repayments of $47.6 million. This increase in borrowings was primarily related to our repurchases of our common stock which
increased $25.0 million to $77.6 million compared to $52.6 million in 2009. Also, during 2010, cash proceeds received through the
exercise of employee stock options decreased $13.9 million compared to 2009 due to a decline in the number of exercisable awards
outstanding.
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Sources and Uses of Cash – Fiscal Year 2009 Compared to Fiscal Year 2008
Net cash provided by operating activities increased $10.1 million to $154.3 million during 2009 from $144.2 million in 2008. The
increase was primarily attributable to increases in net income and non-cash adjustments, partially offset by changes in our operating
assets and liabilities.
Our cash interest payments decreased $4.2 million to $12.3 million during 2009 from $16.5 million in 2008 primarily due to a
reduction in the prevailing rates of interest incurred on our borrowings in 2009 as compared to the prior year, partially offset by
payments of approximately $0.5 million we made during 2009 in connection with various state tax settlements.
Our cash payments for income taxes, net of refunds we received, decreased $26.2 million to $20.5 million during 2009 compared
to payments of $46.7 million in 2008 primarily due to our payment of $6.3 million in 2008 to the Internal Revenue Service for the
settlement of certain federal income tax examination issues and a $5.5 million refund we received during the first quarter of 2009
related to excess 2008 federal income tax payments.
Net cash used in investing activities decreased $12.5 million to $72.9 million during 2009 from $85.5 million in 2008 primarily
due to our adding fewer Company-owned stores in 2009 and reductions in general capital maintenance activities at our stores and
capital spending at our corporate office compared to 2008. Cash flows from investing activities during 2008 also included the receipt
of cash proceeds of approximately $2.1 million from our sale of property related to TJ Hartford’s.
Net cash used in financing activities increased $22.5 million to $80.6 million during 2009 from $58.0 million in 2008, primarily
due to our repayment during 2009 of borrowings under our revolving credit facility, partially offset by a reduction in our share
repurchase activity. During 2009, we made repayments of $47.6 million on the outstanding debt balance under our revolving credit
facility, compared to 2008 when we increased our borrowings by $85.1 million. Also, during 2009, our repurchases of our common
stock decreased $108.2 million to $52.6 million, compared to $160.8 million in 2008.
Debt Financing
Our revolving credit facility agreement provides for total borrowings of up to $550.0 million. The credit facility, which matures
in October 2012, also includes an accordion feature which allows us, subject to lender approval, to request an increase to the revolving
commitment of up to $50.0 million in borrowings at any time. As of January 2, 2011, there were $377.0 million of borrowings and
approximately $10.7 million of letters of credit issued but undrawn under our credit facility. Based on the type of borrowing, the credit
facility bears interest at the London Interbank Offered Rate (―LIBOR‖) plus an applicable margin of 0.625% to 1.25% determined
based on our financial performance and debt levels, or alternatively, the higher of (a) the prime rate or (b) the Federal Funds rate plus
0.50%. As of January 2, 2011, borrowings under the credit facility incurred interest at LIBOR (ranging from 0.26% – 0.28%) plus
1.00% or prime (3.25%). A commitment fee of 0.1% to 0.3%, depending on our financial performance and debt levels, is payable on a
quarterly basis on any unused credit line. All borrowings under the credit facility are unsecured, but we have agreed not to pledge any
of our existing assets to secure future indebtedness.
During 2010, we increased the outstanding debt balance under our revolving credit facility by $22.7 million to $377.0 million as
of January 2, 2011 from $354.3 million as of January 3, 2010, primarily due to an increase in our repurchases of our common stock
during 2010. Including the effect of our interest rate swap contract, the weighted average effective interest rate incurred on borrowings
under our revolving credit facility was 2.9%, 2.9% and 4.2% in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Our revolving credit facility agreement contains a number of covenants that, among other things, require us to comply with the
following financial ratios as of the end of any fiscal quarter:
•

a consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio of not less than 1.5 to 1.0, based upon the ratio of (a) consolidated EBITR for the last
four fiscal quarters to (b) the sum of consolidated interest charges plus consolidated rent expense during such period. Consolidated
EBITR, as defined in the revolving credit facility agreement, equals net income plus consolidated interest charges, income taxes,
stock-based compensation expense, rent expense, and other non-cash charges, reduced by non-cash income.

•

a consolidated leverage ratio of not greater than 3.0 to 1.0, based upon the ratio of (a) the quarter-end consolidated funded
indebtedness (as defined in the revolving credit facility agreement) to (b) consolidated EBITDA for the last four fiscal quarters.
Consolidated EBITDA, as defined in the revolving credit facility agreement, equals our consolidated EBITR adjusted to exclude
the non-cash portion of rent expense plus depreciation and amortization.

Our revolving credit facility is the primary source of committed funding from which we finance our planned capital expenditures,
repurchase of our common stock, and provide for working capital needs. Non-compliance with the financial covenant ratios could
prevent us from being able to access further borrowings under our revolving credit facility, require us to immediately repay all
amounts outstanding under the revolving credit facility, and increase our cost of borrowing. As of January 2, 2011, we were in
compliance with these covenant ratios, with a consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio of 2.25 to 1 and a consolidated leverage ratio
of 2.04 to 1.
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Interest Rate Swap
In May 2008, we entered into an interest rate swap contract to effectively convert $150.0 million of our variable rate revolving
credit facility debt to a fixed interest rate. The contract, which matures in May 2011, requires us to pay a fixed rate of 3.62% while
receiving variable payments from the counterparty at the three-month LIBOR rate. Including the 1.00 percentage point applicable
margin incurred on our revolving credit facility, the effective interest rate of the swap contract was 4.62% as of January 2, 2011. The
differential amounts receivable or payable under the swap contract are recorded over the life of the contract as adjustments to interest
expense. We continually assess our strategy towards managing interest rate risk and the appropriateness of interest rate swaps on
future indebtedness.
As of January 2, 2011, the estimated fair value of the swap contract was a liability of approximately $2.0 million. Refer to Note 7.
―Derivative Instrument‖ of our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. ―Financial Statements and Supplementary Data‖
for a more complete discussion of our interest rate swap contract.
Capital Expenditures
The following table summarizes information regarding the number of capital spending initiatives we completed during each of
the periods presented:
Fiscal Year
2010
2009
2008
Investment in existing Company-owned stores:
Game enhancements (1) .......................................................................................................
Major remodels...................................................................................................................
Store expansions .................................................................................................................
Total completed .............................................................................................................

180
15
28
223

125
9
26
160

125
15
20
160

12
3
7
Company-owned stores added (2) ..........................................................................................................................................................

______________
(1)
2010 included incremental game enhancements completed for stores located in the Los Angeles, San Diego, Chicago, and Philadelphia
market areas in conjunction with local television advertising.
(2)
Company-owned stores added during 2010 included five stores we acquired from franchisees and two stores we relocated. Companyowned stores added during 2008 included two stores we acquired from franchisees and one store we relocated.

We believe that in order to maintain consumer demand for and the appeal of our concept, we must continually reinvest in our
existing stores. For our existing stores, we currently utilize the following capital initiatives: (a) game enhancements; (b) major
remodels; and (c) store expansions. While initiatives such as expansions may capitalize on incremental revenue growth opportunities,
we believe our capital initiatives involving major remodels and game enhancements serve more to preserve our existing sales base and
cash flows over the long term.
Game enhancements. Game enhancements include replacing a portion of a store’s games and rides with new and, to a lesser
extent, refurbished equipment. We believe game enhancements are necessary to maintain the relevance and appeal of our games and
rides. In addition, game enhancements enable us to introduce improvements in game and ride technology.
Major remodels. We undertake periodic major remodels when there is a need to improve the overall appearance or layout of a
store or when we introduce concept changes or enhancements to our stores. A major remodel initiative typically includes interior
design modifications that allow us to more effectively utilize space allocated to the playroom area of the store, increasing the number
of games and rides, and developing a new interior identity.
Store expansions. We believe store expansions improve the quality of our guests’ experience because the additional square
footage allows us to increase the number and variety of games, rides and other entertainment offerings in the expanded stores. In
addition to expanding the square footage of a store, store expansions typically include all components of a major remodel and result in
an increase in the store’s seat count. We consider our investments in store expansions to generally be discretionary in nature. In
undertaking store expansions, our objective is to improve the appeal of our stores and to respond to sales growth opportunities as they
arise.
Since the lifecycles of our store format and our games are largely driven by changes in consumer behaviors and preferences, we
believe that our capital initiatives involving major remodels and game enhancements are required in order to keep pace with consumer
entertainment expectations. As a result, we view our major remodel and game enhancement initiatives as a means to maintaining and
protecting our existing sales and cash flows over the long term. While we are hopeful that our major remodels and game
enhancements will contribute to incremental sales growth, we believe that our capital spending with respect to expansions of existing
stores will more directly lead to growth in our comparable store sales and cash flow. We typically invest in expansions when we
believe there is a potential for sales growth and, in some instances, in order to maintain sales in stores that compete with other largebox competitors. We believe that expanding the square footage and entertainment space of a store increases our guest traffic and
enhances the overall customer experience, which we believe will contribute to the growth of our long-term comparable store sales.
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The objective of an expansion or remodel that increases space available for entertainment is not intended to exclusively improve our
entertainment sales, but rather is focused on impacting overall Company store sales through increased guest traffic and satisfaction.
New Company store development. Our plan for new store development is primarily focused on opening high sales volume stores
in densely populated areas. During 2010, we opened seven new Company-owned stores, including two relocated stores. Also, during
2010 we acquired five existing store locations from franchisees. The cost of a new store varies depending upon many factors including
the size of the store, whether we acquire land and whether the store is located in an in-line or freestanding building.
Fiscal 2011 Capital Plan
Our future capital expenditures are expected to be primarily for reinvestment into our existing Company-owned store base
through various capital initiatives and the development or acquisition of additional Company stores. We estimate capital expenditures
in fiscal 2011 will total approximately $94 million to $95 million, including approximately $63 million related to capital initiatives for
our existing stores, approximately $16 million related to new store development and the remainder for other store initiatives, general
store requirements and corporate capital expenditures. We plan to fund these capital expenditures through cash flow from operations
and, if necessary, borrowings under our revolving credit facility.
The following tables summarize information regarding the expected number of and estimated average cost for our projected
capital expenditures activities in fiscal 2011:
Projected
Completions
In
Fiscal Year
2011

Estimated
Average
Cost
Per Project
(in millions)

Investment in existing Company-owned stores:
140 to 150 $0.1 to $0.2
Game enhancements.............................................................................................................................................................................
Major remodels ....................................................................................................................................................................................
15 to 20
$0.6
30 to 35
Store expansions ..................................................................................................................................................................................
$1.0
185
to
205
Total .................................................................................................................................................................................................
6
$2.7 to $2.8
New Company store development (1) ....................................................................................................................................................

______________
(1)

New Company store development projected for fiscal year 2011 includes three store relocations .

Share Repurchases
Our Board of Directors (―Board‖) has approved a program for us to repurchase shares of our common stock. On July 25, 2005,
the Board approved a stock repurchase program which authorized us to repurchase from time to time up to $400 million of our
common stock and on October 22, 2007 and October 27, 2009 authorized $200 million increases each. During 2010, we repurchased
2,184,515 shares of our common stock at an aggregate purchase price of approximately $77.6 million, and as of January 2, 2011,
approximately $141.1 million remained available for share repurchases under our repurchase authorization.
The share repurchase authorization approved by the Board does not have an expiration date and the pace of our repurchase
activity will depend on factors such as our working capital needs, our debt repayment obligations, our stock price, and economic and
market conditions. Our share repurchases may be effected from time to time through open market purchases, accelerated share
repurchases or in privately negotiated transactions. Our share repurchase program may be accelerated, suspended, delayed or
discontinued at any time.
Cash Dividends
On February 22, 2011, our Board approved the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend of $0.20 per share, or $0.80 per share for
each year. Due to the timing of the Board’s decision, dividends paid during the 2011 fiscal year are expected to be $0.60 per share.
Our first quarterly dividend of $0.20 per share will be paid on April 21, 2011 to shareholders of record on March 24, 2011. We expect
to continue to pay quarterly dividends. However, there can be no assurance that future dividends will be declared or paid. The actual
declaration and payment of future dividends, the amount of any such dividends, and the establishment of record and payment dates, if
any, is subject to final determination by our Board of Directors each quarter after its review of our then-current strategy, applicable
debt covenants, and financial performance and position, among other things. See ―Item 1A. Risk Factors‖ for a discussion of factors
that might affect our financial performance and compliance with debt covenants, including covenants that affect our ability to pay
dividends. Also see ―Note 6. Revolving Credit Facility‖ of our consolidated financial statements in this annual report on Form 10-K.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations
At January 2, 2011, we had no off-balance sheet financing arrangements as described in Regulation S-K Item 303(a)(4)(ii).
The following table summarizes our contractual cash obligations as of January 2, 2011:

Total

Payments Due by Period
Less than
1–3
3–5
1 Year
Years
Years
(in thousands)

Operating leases (1)............................................................... $ 958,135 $
Capital leases .......................................................................
16,383
Revolving credit facility (2) ..................................................
377,000
Interest obligations (3) ..........................................................
10,505
Purchase commitments ........................................................
Uncertain tax positions (4) ....................................................
482
$ 1,362,505 $

73,175 $
1,750
6,620
482
82,027 $

145,252 $
3,319
377,000
3,885
529,456 $

More than
5 Years

143,087 $
3,231
146,318 $

596,621
8,083
604,704

______________
(1)
Includes the initial non-cancellable term plus renewal option periods provided for in the lease that can be reasonably assured and excludes
obligations to pay property taxes, insurance and maintenance on the leased assets.
(2)
The amount for the revolving credit facility excludes interest payments related to this variable rate debt.
(3)
Interest obligations represent an estimate of future interest payments under our revolving credit facility. We calculated the estimate based
on (i) terms of the credit facility agreement, (ii) using a 1.27% weighted average interest rate incurred on outstanding borrowings that
were not subject to an interest rate swap agreement as of January 2, 2011, (iii) and $150.0 million notional amount of debt converted to a
fixed rate of 3.62% through an interest rate swap contract which matures in May 2011. Our estimate assumes that we will maintain the
same levels indebtedness and financial performance through the credit facility’s maturity in October 2012.
(4)
Due to the uncertainty related to the timing and reversal of uncertain tax positions, only the current portion of the liability for
unrecognized tax benefits has been provided in the table above. The noncurrent portion excluded from the table above is approximately
$3.9 million.

As of January 2, 2011, capital expenditures totaling $11.1 million were outstanding and included in accounts payable. These
amounts are expected to be paid in less than one year.
The total estimated accrued liabilities for our self-insurance programs was approximately $20.0 million as of January 2, 2011. We
estimate that approximately $6.9 million of these liabilities will be paid in fiscal 2011 and the remainder paid in 2012 and beyond.
Due to the nature of the underlying liabilities and the extended period of time often experienced in resolving insurance claims, we
cannot make reliable estimates of the timing of cash payments to be made in the future for our accrued insurance liabilities. Therefore,
no amounts for such liabilities have been included in the table above.
As of January 2, 2011, there were approximately $10.7 million of letters of credit issued but undrawn under our credit facility.
We utilize standby letters of credit primarily for our self-insurance programs. These letters of credit do not represent additional
obligations of the Company since the underlying liabilities are recorded in our accrued insurance liabilities. However, if we were
unable to pay insurance claims when due, our insurance carrier could make demand for payment pursuant to the letters of credit.
We enter into various purchase agreements in the ordinary course of business. While we have fixed price agreements and
contracts with ―spot‖ market prices relating primarily to food and beverage products, we do not have any material contracts (either
individually or in the aggregate) in place committing us to a minimum or fixed level of purchases or that are cancelable subject to
significant penalty. Therefore, no amounts for such arrangements have been included in the table above.
Inflation
Our cost of operations, including but not limited to labor, food products, supplies, utilities, financing and rental costs, are
significantly affected by inflationary factors.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States (―U.S. GAAP‖). The application of U.S. GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported values of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period,
and the related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. The use of estimates is pervasive throughout our consolidated financial
statements and is affected by management judgment and uncertainties. Our estimates, assumptions and judgments are based on
historical experience, current market trends and other factors that we believe to be relevant and reasonable at the time the consolidated
financial statements are prepared. We continually evaluate the information used to make these estimates as the business and the
economic environment change. Actual results may differ materially from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
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The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements are described in Note 1.
―Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies‖ included in Item 8. ―Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.‖ We consider an accounting policy or estimate to be critical if it requires difficult, subjective or complex
judgments, and is material to the portrayal of financial condition, changes in financial condition or results of operations. The
accounting policies and estimates that our management considers most critical are: estimation of reserves specifically related to
insurance, tax reserves and legal contingencies; impairment of long-lived assets; accounting for leases and hedge accounting. The
selection, application and disclosure of the critical accounting policies and estimates have been reviewed by the Audit Committee of
the Board of Directors.
Estimation of Reserves
The amount of liability we record for claims related to insurance, tax and contingent losses requires us to make judgments about
the amount of expenses that will ultimately be incurred. We use history and experience, as well as other specific circumstances
surrounding these contingencies, in evaluating the amount of liability that should be recorded. As additional information becomes
available, we assess the potential liability related to various claims and revise our estimates as appropriate. These revisions could
materially impact our results of operations and financial position or liquidity.
Insurance reserves. We are self-insured for certain losses related to workers’ compensation claims, property losses and general
liability matters. We also have a self-insured health program administered by a third party covering the majority of the employees that
participate in our health insurance programs. We estimate the amount of reserves for all the insurance programs discussed above at the
end of each reporting period. This estimate is primarily based on information provided by independent third-party actuaries. The
information includes historical claims experience, current claims data, demographic factors, severity factors and other factors we deem
relevant. We purchase stop-loss insurance coverage through third-party insurance carriers for certain losses related to workers'
compensation, general liability, property, employee health insurance programs and other liability claims, with deductibles of up to
approximately $0.2 million to $0.5 million per occurrence. For claims that exceed the deductible amount, we record a gross liability
and a corresponding receivable representing expected recoveries pursuant to the stop-loss coverage, since we are not legally relieved
of our obligation to the claimant.
Tax reserves. We are subject to audits from multiple domestic and foreign tax authorities. We maintain reserves to provide for
potential tax exposures when, despite our belief that tax return positions are fully supported by the applicable tax laws and regulations,
we believe that certain positions may not be fully sustained upon review by taxing authorities (referred to as a ―liability for
unrecognized tax benefits‖ or tax reserve resulting from uncertain tax positions). We recognize the benefit from an uncertain tax
position in our consolidated financial statements at the largest amount of benefit (measured using a probability weighted approach)
that is greater than a 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate resolution and settlement with the taxing authorities. We
routinely assess the adequacy of our estimated liability for unrecognized tax benefits and our estimate may be affected by changing
interpretations of laws, rulings by tax authorities, certain changes and/or developments with respect to audits, and expiration of the
statute of limitations. Depending on the nature of the tax issue, the ultimate resolution of an uncertain tax position may not be known
for a number of years; therefore, the estimated reserve balances might exist on the balance sheet for multiple years. To the extent that
new information becomes available which causes us to change our judgment regarding the adequacy of recorded reserve balances,
such changes to tax reserves will affect income tax expense in the period in which such determination is made. Although we believe
our approach to determining the tax treatment is appropriate, there can be no assurance that the final outcome resulting from a tax
authority’s review will not be materially different than the amounts reflected in our estimated tax provision and tax reserves. If the
results of any audit materially differ from the liabilities we have established for taxes, there would be a corresponding impact on our
tax reserves, effective tax rate, net earnings and cash flows in the period of resolution.
Contingent loss reserves. From time to time we are involved with inquiries, investigations, claims, lawsuits and other legal
proceedings for which we may be uninsured that are incidental to the conduct of our business which are brought about by customers,
employees and others involved in operational issues common to the retail, restaurant and entertainment industries. When a
contingency involving uncertainty as to a possible loss (―contingent loss‖) occurs, an estimate of such contingent loss may be accrued
as a charge to income and a reserve established on the balance sheet. We perform regular assessments of our contingent losses and
develop estimates of the degree of probability for and range of possible settlement. We record liabilities for those losses we deem to
be probable and for which we are able to reasonably estimate an amount of settlement. If we are only able to determine a range of
estimated loss, with no amount in the range representing better estimate than any other amount within the range, we record a
contingent liability typically equal to the low end of the range. Our estimates of contingent loss are developed in consultation with inhouse and outside legal counsel and are based upon a combination of litigation and settlement strategies in light of specific events and
circumstances including settlement discussions with respect to ongoing legal matters and court rulings in relevant, but unrelated,
proceedings and reserve balances may be increased or decreased in the future to reflect further developments. The assessment of
contingent loss reserves is highly subjective and requires us to make judgments about uncertain future events. Although we believe
that our assessments of contingent loss reserves are based on reasonable judgments and estimates, there can be no assurance that there
will not be a loss different from the amounts accrued, which may expose us to material gains or losses in future periods. These actual
results could materially affect our net earnings and cash flows in the period of resolution.
Impairment of Property and Equipment
We review our property and equipment for impairment on a store-by-store basis when certain events or changes in circumstances
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indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such events or changes may include a significant change in the business
climate in a particular market area (for example, due to economic downturn or natural disaster), historical negative cash flows or plans
to dispose of or sell the property and equipment before the end of its previously estimated useful life. If an event or change in
circumstances occur, we estimate the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the property and equipment and its eventual
disposition. If the sum of the expected future cash flows, undiscounted and without interest, is less than the asset carrying amount (an
indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable), we may recognize an impairment loss. We estimate the fair value of a
store’s property and equipment by discounting the expected future cash flows of the store over its remaining lease term using a
weighted average cost of capital commensurate with the risk. Factors that we must estimate when performing impairment tests
include, among other items, sales volume, strategic plans, capital spending, useful lives, salvage values and discount rates. Our
assessments of cash flows represent our best estimate as of the time of the impairment review. If actual results are not consistent with
our estimates and assumptions, we may be exposed to additional impairment charges, which could be material to our results of
operations.
Any impairment loss recognized equals the amount by which the asset carrying amount exceeds its estimated fair value. In the
event an asset is impaired, its carrying value is adjusted to the estimated fair value, and any subsequent increases in fair value are not
recorded. Additionally, if it is determined that the estimated remaining useful life of the asset should be decreased, any periodic
depreciation expense is adjusted based on the new carrying value of the asset unless written down to salvage value, at which time
depreciation ceases.
Accounting for Leases
We estimate the expected term of a lease by assuming the exercise of renewal options, in addition to the initial non-cancelable
lease term, if the renewal is reasonably assured generally due to our contractual right to renew and the existence of an economic
penalty that would preclude the abandonment of the lease at the end of the initial non-cancelable lease term. The expected term is
used in the determination of whether a lease is a capital or operating lease and in the calculation of straight-line rent expense.
Additionally, the useful life of leasehold improvements is limited by the expected lease term or the economic life of the asset,
whichever is shorter. If significant expenditures are made for leasehold improvements late in the expected term of a lease and renewal
is reasonably assured, the useful life of the leasehold improvement is limited to the end of the reasonably assured renewal period or
economic life of the asset.
The determination of the expected term of a lease requires us to apply judgment and estimates concerning the number of renewal
periods that are reasonably assured. If a lease is terminated prior to reaching the end of the expected term, this may result in the
acceleration of depreciation or impairment of a store’s long-lived assets, and it may result in the reversal of deferred rent balances that
assumed higher rent payments in renewal periods that were never ultimately exercised by us.
Hedge Accounting
We use an interest rate swap contract to reduce our exposure to interest rate fluctuations on our variable rate revolving credit
facility. This derivative instrument is recognized on the balance sheet at its estimated fair value. We determine the fair value of our
interest rate swap contract using the present value of expected future cash flows arising from the contract which we believe
approximates an amount to be received from or paid to a market participant for this instrument. Our valuation methodology utilizes
forward interest rate yield curves obtained from an independent pricing service’s forward quotes of the benchmark interest rate
through the swap contract’s maturity. At inception and on an ongoing basis, we assess whether the interest rate swap is highly
effective in offsetting changes in the interest payment cash flows on the hedged amount of revolving credit facility debt. We have
determined that our interest rate swap contract qualifies for hedge accounting treatment pursuant to U.S. GAAP, therefore, we
recognize changes in its fair value that are determined to be effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of the hedged item in
―Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)‖ (―hedge accounting‖). Throughout the term of the swap contract, the unrealized
gains or losses we have reported in accumulated other comprehensive income will be recognized in earnings, when the variable
interest rate of the debt affects earnings. The ineffective portion of interest rate swap fair value changes, if any, are recorded
immediately in earnings.
Recently Issued Accounting Guidance
Newly Adopted Accounting Guidance
As of the beginning of our 2010 fiscal year, we adopted a new accounting standard amending the consolidation accounting
requirements for a variable interest entity (―VIE‖) which now prescribes a qualitative assessment for determining whether a variable
interest gives an enterprise a controlling financial interest in a VIE. This new guidance also requires separate presentation of the assets
and liabilities of a consolidated VIE on the face of the balance sheet if specific criteria are met. Our adoption of this new standard did
not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
Also in 2010, we adopted the amended accounting guidance contained in Accounting Standards Update 2010-06, which required
new and enhanced disclosures about recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements. This new guidance requires the disclosure
of changes in a measured item’s assignment among the levels within the three-tiered fair value hierarchy, clarifies existing
requirements concerning the disaggregation of fair value measurement disclosures for each class of assets and liabilities as well as
additional disclosure around the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value. Our adoption of this new guidance did not
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have a significant impact on our disclosure of fair value measurements in our consolidated financial statements.
Accounting Guidance Not Yet Adopted
In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (―FASB‖) issued Accounting Standards Update 2009-13 which
amends the accounting and reporting guidance for arrangements comprised of multiple products or services (―deliverables‖). The
FASB’s revised guidance clarifies how an entity determines separate units of accounting in a multiple-deliverable arrangement and
requires that revenue be allocated to all arrangement deliverables using the relative selling price method. The revised guidance is
effective for the first annual reporting period beginning on or after June 15, 2010 and may be applied prospectively as of the adoption
date or retrospectively for all periods presented. Early adoption is permitted provided that the revised guidance is retroactively applied
to the beginning of the year of adoption. We will apply this guidance prospectively as of the start of our 2011 fiscal year. We have
evaluated this new accounting guidance and our adoption will not have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.
ITEM 7A: Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.
We are subject to interest rate, commodity price and foreign currency market risks.
Interest Rate Risk
We are exposed to market risk from changes in the variable interest rates (primarily LIBOR) incurred on our revolving credit
facility, which at January 2, 2011 had borrowings outstanding of $377.0 million. We have entered into an interest rate swap contract
which effectively fixes the LIBOR component of our interest rate to a fixed rate of 3.62% on $150.0 million of our borrowings,
leaving us with $227.0 million of variable rate debt as of January 2, 2011. After giving effect to the interest rate swap, a 100 basis
point increase in the variable interest rates on our revolving credit facility at January 2, 2011, assuming no change in our outstanding
debt balance, would have increased our annual interest expense by approximately $2.3 million.
Commodity Price Risk
Commodity prices of certain products that we purchase, primarily cheese and dough, vary throughout the year due to changes in
demand, supply and other factors. Currently, we have not entered into any hedging arrangements to reduce our exposure to
commodity price volatility. However, we typically enter into short term purchasing contracts which may contain pricing arrangements
designed to minimize commodity price fluctuations. The estimated increase in our food costs from a hypothetical 10 percent increase
in the average cheese block price per pound (approximately $0.15 as of January 2, 2011) would have been approximately $1.0 million
for fiscal 2010. The estimated increase in our food costs from a hypothetical 10 percent increase in the average dough price per pound
(approximately $0.04 as of January 2, 2011) would have been approximately $0.5 million for fiscal 2010.
Foreign Currency Risk
As of January 2, 2011, we operated a total of 14 Company-owned stores in Canada. As a result, we have market risk associated
with changes in the value of the Canadian dollar. These changes result in cumulative translation adjustments, which are included in
―Accumulated other comprehensive income‖, and potentially result in transaction gains or losses, which are included in our earnings.
During 2010, our Canada stores represented approximately 0.2% of our operating income. A hypothetical 10 percent devaluation in
the average quoted U.S. dollar-equivalent of the Canadian dollar exchange rate during 2010 would have reduced our reported
operating income by less than $0.1 million.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Board of Directors and Stockholders
CEC Entertainment, Inc.
Irving, Texas
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CEC Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of
January 2, 2011 and January 3, 2010, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 2, 2011. We also have audited the Company's internal control over
financial reporting as of January 2, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's management is responsible for these financial
statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and an opinion on the Company's internal control
over financial reporting based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.
Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's principal
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to
the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
CEC Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 2, 2011 and January 3, 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 2, 2011, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of January 2, 2011, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Dallas, Texas
February 24, 2011
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CEC ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share and share amounts)
January 2,
2011

January 3,
2010

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ............................................................................................................ $
Accounts receivable .....................................................................................................................
Inventories ....................................................................................................................................
Prepaid expenses ..........................................................................................................................
Deferred tax asset .........................................................................................................................

19,269
32,237
18,485
13,942
3,420

$

17,361
27,031
18,016
13,915
3,392

Total current assets ...................................................................................................................

87,353

79,715

Property and equipment, net ..............................................................................................................
Other noncurrent assets .....................................................................................................................

683,192
7,484

662,747
1,804

Total assets ............................................................................................................................... $

778,029

$

744,266

936
42,844
32,968
9,393
957
1,976

$

881
32,754
33,927
7,641
1,077
4,459

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Capital lease obligations, current portion ..................................................................................... $
Accounts payable .........................................................................................................................
Accrued expenses .........................................................................................................................
Unearned revenues .......................................................................................................................
Accrued interest ...........................................................................................................................
Derivative instrument liability......................................................................................................
Total current liabilities .............................................................................................................

89,074

80,739

Capital lease obligations, less current portion ...................................................................................
Revolving credit facility borrowings .................................................................................................
Deferred rent liability ........................................................................................................................
Deferred landlord contributions.........................................................................................................
Deferred tax liability..........................................................................................................................
Accrued insurance .............................................................................................................................
Derivative instrument liability ...........................................................................................................
Other noncurrent liabilities ................................................................................................................

10,326
377,000
51,522
28,913
43,038
13,144
6,950

10,629
354,300
48,765
28,220
33,690
12,068
1,154
6,788

Total liabilities ..........................................................................................................................

619,967

576,353

6,144
436,051
756,448
4,522
(1,045,103)

6,112
425,717
702,414
1,140
(967,470)

Total stockholders’ equity ........................................................................................................

158,062

167,913

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .................................................................................. $

778,029

Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.10 par value; authorized 100,000,000 shares; 61,436,229 and 61,120,018
shares issued, respectively ........................................................................................................
Capital in excess of par value .......................................................................................................
Retained earnings .........................................................................................................................
Accumulated other comprehensive income ..................................................................................
Less treasury stock, at cost; 41,128,869 and 38,944,354 shares, respectively..............................

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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$

744,266

CEC ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
2010

Fiscal Year
2009

2008

REVENUES
Food and beverage sales ................................................................................................. $
Entertainment and merchandise sales .............................................................................

398,241
414,892

Company store sales ..................................................................................................
Franchise fees and royalties ............................................................................................

813,133
4,115

814,563
3,783

810,693
3,816

Total revenues ...........................................................................................................

817,248

818,346

814,509

OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Company store operating costs:
Cost of food and beverage (exclusive of items shown separately below) .................
Cost of entertainment and merchandise (exclusive of items shown
separately below) .................................................................................................

90,649

91,816

96,891

34,233

36,429

34,525

Cost of food, beverage, entertainment and merchandise ...........................................
Labor expenses ..........................................................................................................
Depreciation and amortization ..................................................................................
Rent expense .............................................................................................................
Other store operating expenses..................................................................................

124,882
222,337
79,716
70,425
128,075

128,245
223,084
77,101
67,695
123,986

131,416
223,331
74,805
65,959
119,990

Total Company store operating costs.....................................................................
Advertising expense .......................................................................................................
General and administrative expenses ..............................................................................
Asset impairments ..........................................................................................................

625,435
35,282
50,693
936

620,111
36,641
50,629
-

615,501
34,736
55,970
282

Total operating costs and expenses ........................................................................

712,346

707,381

706,489

Operating income ...........................................................................................................

104,902

110,965

108,020

Interest expense ..............................................................................................................

12,142

12,017

17,389

Income before income taxes ...........................................................................................

92,760

98,948

90,631

Income taxes ...................................................................................................................

38,726

37,754

34,137

Net income ..................................................................................................................... $
54,034
Earnings per share:
Basic ..........................................................................................................................
$
2.55
Diluted .......................................................................................................................
$
2.55
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic ..........................................................................................................................
Diluted .......................................................................................................................

$

$

21,163
21,204

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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406,635
407,928

61,194
$
$

2.68
2.67
22,835
22,933

$

409,895
400,798

$

56,494
$
$

2.37
2.33
23,825
24,199

CEC ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For Fiscal Years 2008, 2009 and 2010
(in thousands, except share amounts)
Capital In
Excess of
Par Value

Common Stock
Shares

Amount

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Retained
Earnings

Treasury Stock
Shares

Amount

Total

Balance at December 31, 2007 ..........................................
Net income ..........................................................................
Change in fair value of cash flow hedge, net of
income taxes of $(2,968) ...................................................
Hedging loss realized in earnings, net of
income taxes of $335.........................................................
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of
income taxes of $(646) ......................................................
Comprehensive income ................................................

58,874,737
-

Stock-based compensation costs ..........................................
Stock options exercised .......................................................
Restricted stock issued, net of forfeitures ............................
Tax shortfall from stock options and
restricted stock ..................................................................
Restricted stock returned for taxes .......................................
Common stock issued under 401(k) plan .............................
Purchases of treasury stock ..................................................

671,311
324,967

67
33

6,173
19,102
(33)

-

-

-

-

6,173
19,169
-

(31,243)
20,950

(3)
2

(1,008)
(1,028)
542

-

-

-

-

(1,008)
(1,031)
544

-

-

-

-

-

4,911,041

(160,845)

(160,845)

Balance at December 28, 2008 ..........................................
Net income ..........................................................................
Change in fair value of cash flow hedge, net of
income taxes of $(1,080) ...................................................
Hedging loss realized in earnings, net of
income taxes of $1,579 ......................................................
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of
income taxes of $662.........................................................
Comprehensive income ................................................

59,860,722
-

5,986
-

398,124
-

641,220
61,194

(1,892)
-

37,169,265
-

(914,852)
-

128,586
61,194

-

-

-

-

(1,761)

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,576

-

-

2,576

-

-

-

-

2,217

-

-

2,217

Stock-based compensation costs ..........................................
Stock options exercised .......................................................
Restricted stock issued, net of forfeitures ............................
Tax benefit from stock options and
restricted stock ..................................................................
Restricted stock returned for taxes .......................................
Common stock issued under 401(k) plan .............................
Purchases of treasury stock ..................................................

983,726
309,750

98
31

8,154
19,633
(31)

-

-

-

-

8,154
19,731
-

(57,973)
23,793

(6)
3

625
(1,363)
575

-

-

-

-

625
(1,369)
578

-

-

-

-

-

1,775,089

(52,618)

Balance at January 3, 2010 ...............................................

61,120,018

6,112

425,717

702,414

1,140

38,944,354

(967,470)

Net income ..........................................................................
Change in fair value of cash flow hedge, net of
income taxes of $(510) ......................................................
Hedging loss realized in earnings, net of
income taxes of $1,888 ......................................................
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of
income taxes of $144.........................................................
Comprehensive income ................................................

-

-

-

54,034

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(835)

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,094

-

-

3,094

-

-

-

-

1,123

-

-

1,123

Stock-based compensation costs ..........................................
Stock options exercised .......................................................
Restricted stock issued, net of forfeitures ............................
Tax shortfall from stock options and
restricted stock ..................................................................
Restricted stock returned for taxes .......................................
Common stock issued under 401(k) plan .............................
Purchases of treasury stock ..................................................

181,043
194,700

18
20

7,529
5,773
(20)

-

-

-

(78,424)
18,892
-

(8)
2
-

(790)
(2,759)
601
-

-

-

2,184,515

(77,633)

Balance at January 2, 2011 ...............................................

61,436,229

4,522

41,128,869

$ (1,045,103)

$

5,887
-

$

374,376
-

$

584,726
56,494

$

7,011
-

32,258,224
-

$

(754,007)
-

(4,842)

-

-

$ 217,993
56,494

-

-

-

-

(4,842)

-

-

-

-

547

-

-

547

-

-

-

-

(4,608)

-

-

(4,608)
47,591

(1,761)

64,226

(52,618)
167,913
54,034
(835)

57,416

$

6,144

$

436,051

$

756,448

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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-

7,529
5,791
(790)
(2,767)
603
(77,633)
$ 158,062

CEC ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)
Fiscal Year
2009

2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income ................................................................................................................ $
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization...............................................................................
Deferred income taxes ...........................................................................................
Stock-based compensation expense .......................................................................
Amortization of landlord contributions .................................................................
Amortization of deferred debt financing costs.......................................................
Loss on asset disposals, net ...................................................................................
Asset impairments .................................................................................................
Other adjustments ..................................................................................................
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable...............................................................................................
Inventories .............................................................................................................
Prepaid expenses ...................................................................................................
Accounts payable...................................................................................................
Accrued expenses ..................................................................................................
Unearned revenues ................................................................................................
Accrued interest .....................................................................................................
Income taxes payable ............................................................................................
Deferred rent liability ............................................................................................
Deferred landlord contributions .............................................................................
Net cash provided by operating activities ..........................................................

2008

54,034 $

61,194

$

56,494

80,679
7,210
7,338
(2,049)
281
3,320
936
15

78,071
8,581
7,934
(2,023)
281
2,941
(6)

75,445
580
5,980
(1,967)
281
2,245
282
(132)

1,132
(423)
1
6,723
336
1,748
118
(9,811)
2,658
2,624

5,234
(3,835)
(2,719)
(4,862)
2,763
66
(2,380)
1,244
1,368
406

(13,413)
1,275
1,417
2,415
7,298
1,134
(421)
669
2,567
2,033

156,870

154,258

144,182

(99,844)
(3,025)

(73,090)
159

(87,790)
2,362
(50)

(102,869)

(72,931)

(85,478)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from (repayments on) revolving credit facility ....................................
Payments on capital lease obligations .......................................................................
Exercise of stock options...........................................................................................
Excess tax benefit realized from stock-based compensation .....................................
Payment of taxes for returned restricted shares .........................................................
Treasury stock acquired ............................................................................................
Other financing activities ..........................................................................................

22,700
(885)
5,791
631
(2,767)
(77,633)
-

(47,550)
(812)
19,731
2,050
(1,369)
(52,618)
-

85,050
(754)
19,170
389
(1,031)
(160,845)
(13)

Net cash used in financing activities ..................................................................

(52,163)

(80,568)

(58,034)

(1,167)

(1,274)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment ........................................................................
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment ........................................................
Other investing activities ...........................................................................................
Net cash used in investing activities

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash ............................................................

70

Change in cash and cash equivalents ..............................................................................

1,908

(408)

(604)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ..........................................................

17,361

17,769

18,373

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period .................................................................... $

19,269 $

17,361

$

17,769

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Interest paid ............................................................................................................... $
Income taxes paid, net ............................................................................................... $

11,596 $
41,725 $

12,317
20,454

$
$

16,542
46,696

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Accrued construction costs ........................................................................................ $
Capital lease obligations incurred ............................................................................. $
Common stock issued under 401(k) plan .................................................................. $

11,149 $
593 $
603 $

6,479 $
- $
578 $

5,393
544

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CEC ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Description of Business: CEC Entertainment, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the ―Company‖) operate and franchise Chuck E.
Cheese's® family dining and entertainment centers (also referred to as ―stores‖) in a total of 48 states and seven foreign countries or
territories. As of January 2, 2011, the Company operated 507 Chuck E. Cheese’s located in 44 states and Canada and its franchisees
operated a total of 47 stores located in 15 states, Puerto Rico, Guam, Guatemala, Chile, Saudi Arabia, and the United Arab Emirates.
The use of the terms ―CEC Entertainment,‖ ―we,‖ ―us‖ and ―our‖ throughout these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements refer
to the Company.
All of our stores utilize a consistent restaurant-entertainment format that features both family dining and entertainment areas
where each store offers the same general mix of food, beverages, entertainment and merchandise. The economic characteristics,
products and services, preparation processes, distribution methods and types of customers are substantially similar for each of our
stores. Therefore, we aggregate each store’s operating performance into one reportable operating segment for financial reporting
purposes.
Basis of Presentation: Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and the International
Association of CEC Entertainment, Inc. (the ―Association‖), a variable interest entity in which we have a controlling financial interest.
The Association primarily administers the collection and disbursement of funds (the ―Association Funds‖) used for advertising,
entertainment and media programs that benefit both us and our franchisees. We and our franchisees are required to contribute a
percentage of gross sales to these funds and could be required to make additional contributions to fund any deficits that may be
incurred by the Association. We include the Association in our consolidated financial statements because we concluded that we are
the primary beneficiary of its variable interests because we (a) have the power to direct the majority of its significant operating
activities, (b) provide it unsecured lines of credit and (c) own the majority of the store locations that benefit from the Association’s
advertising and media expenditures. The assets, liabilities and operating results of the Association are not material to our consolidated
financial statements. Because the Association Funds are required to be segregated and used for specified purposes, we do not reflect
franchisee contributions as revenue, but rather as an offset to reported expenses. We provide unsecured lines of credit to the
Association which it uses to fund deficiencies in its media and advertising funds.
All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Fiscal Year: We operate on a 52 or 53 week fiscal year that ends on the Sunday nearest to December 31. Each quarterly period
has 13 weeks, except for a 53 week year when the fourth quarter has 14 weeks. References to 2010, 2009 and 2008 are for the fiscal
years ended January 2, 2011, January 3, 2010 and December 28, 2008, respectively. Our 2009 fiscal year consisted of 53 weeks and
our 2010 and 2008 fiscal years each consisted of 52 weeks.
Use of Estimates and Assumptions: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (―U.S. GAAP‖) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Subsequent Events: We recognize the effects of events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial
statements are issued (―subsequent events‖) if there is evidence that conditions related to the subsequent event existed at the date of
the balance sheet, including the impact of such events on management’s estimates and assumptions used in preparing the financial
statements. Other significant subsequent events that are not recognized in the financial statements, if any, are disclosed in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of demand deposits with banks and short-term cash
investments with remaining maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase by us.
Inventories: Inventories of food, beverages, merchandise, paper products, and other supplies needed for our food service and
entertainment operations are stated at the lower of cost on a first-in, first-out basis or market.
Property and Equipment: Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation and amortization are charged to operations using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives, which
are as follows:
Buildings ........................................................................................
40 years
Game and ride equipment ..............................................................
4 to 12 years
Non-technical play equipment .......................................................
15 to 20 years
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment .........................................
4 to 20 years
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CEC ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
Leasehold improvements are amortized by the straight-line method over the lesser of the lease term or the estimated useful lives
of the related assets. We use a consistent lease period (generally, the initial non-cancelable lease term plus renewal option periods
provided for in the lease that can be reasonably assured of being exercised) when estimating the depreciable lives of leasehold
improvements, in determining classification of our leases as either operating or capital and recognizing straight-line rent expense.
Interest costs incurred during the construction period are capitalized and depreciated based on the estimated useful life of the
underlying asset.
We review our property and equipment for impairment on a store-by-store basis whenever events or changes in circumstance
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. We assess the recoverability of a store’s property and equipment by
comparing the sum of future cash flows, undiscounted and without interest, expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of
the property and equipment to its carrying amount. If the sum of the expected future cash flows is less than the asset carrying amount
(an indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable), we may recognize an impairment loss. Any impairment loss
recognized equals the amount by which the asset carrying amount exceeds its fair value. We estimate the fair value of a store’s
property and equipment by discounting the expected future cash flows of the store over its remaining lease term using a weighted
average cost of capital commensurate with the risk.
Capitalized Store Development Costs: We capitalize our internal department costs that are directly attributable to store
development projects, such as the design and construction of a new store and the remodeling and expansion of our existing stores.
Capitalized internal department costs include the compensation, benefits and various office costs related to our design, construction,
facilities and legal departments. We also capitalize interest costs in conjunction with the construction of new stores. Store
development costs are initially accumulated in a construction-in-progress account until a project is completed. At that time, the costs
accumulated to date are reclassified to property and equipment and depreciated according to our depreciation policies. In 2010, 2009
and 2008, we capitalized internal costs of approximately $3.6 million, $3.2 million, and $3.1 million, respectively, related to our store
development activities. Interest costs capitalized were not material in 2010, 2009 and 2008.
Goodwill: We have recorded goodwill associated with certain stores we acquired from our franchisees representing the excess of
the purchase price over the fair value of the specific assets acquired. As of January 2, 2011, goodwill of approximately $3.5 million
was included in ―Other noncurrent assets‖ in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. We had no goodwill recorded as of January 3, 2010.
Goodwill is not amortized, but is tested for impairment at least once per year, or when events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable, using a two-step fair value test. The first step of the test compares the carrying amount of
the reporting unit to its estimated fair value, which is based on the discounted expected future cash flows of the store. If the estimated
fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, a second step is performed to quantify the amount of goodwill
impairment that should be recorded. When testing goodwill for impairment, we make assumptions regarding the amount and the
timing of estimated future cash flows similar to those when testing a store’s property and equipment for impairment, as described
above. We did not record any losses in connection with our impairment test in 2010.
Self-Insurance Accruals: We are self-insured for certain losses related to workers’ compensation claims, property losses, general
liability matters and our company sponsored employee health insurance programs. We estimate the accrued liabilities for our selfinsurance programs using historical claims experience and loss reserves, assisted by independent third-party actuaries. To limit our
exposure to losses, we maintain stop-loss coverage through third-party insurers with deductibles of up to approximately $0.2 million
to $0.5 million per occurrence. For claims that exceed the deductible amount, we record a gross liability and a corresponding
receivable representing expected recoveries pursuant to the stop-loss coverage, since we are not legally relieved of our obligation to
the claimant.
Contingent Loss Accruals: When a contingency involving uncertainty as to a possible loss (―contingent loss‖) occurs, an
estimate of such contingent loss may be accrued as a charge to income and a reserve established on the balance sheet. We accrue
liabilities for those losses we deem to be probable and for which we are able to reasonably estimate an amount of settlement. We
generally do not record liabilities for losses we believe are only reasonably possible to result in an adverse outcome and the reserve
balances may be increased or decreased in the future to reflect further developments. However, there can be no assurance that there
will not be a loss different from the amounts accrued. Any such loss, if realized, could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations in the period during which the underlying matters are resolved.
Revolving Credit Facility Borrowings: We classify the borrowings obtained under our revolving credit facility as a noncurrent
liability on the Consolidated Balance Sheets because the credit agreement allows us, except in the event of our violation of a provision
that makes the obligation callable, to continuously refinance borrowings on a long-term basis through the maturity date and by its
terms, borrowings are not due on demand.
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CEC ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
Comprehensive Income: We report comprehensive income, consisting of net income and certain changes in stockholders’ equity
which are excluded from net income (referred to as ―Other comprehensive income‖) on the Consolidated Statements of Changes in
Stockholders’ Equity. The components of other comprehensive income in 2010, 2009 and 2008 included the change in fair value of
our interest rate swap contract and foreign currency translation adjustments. Other comprehensive income is recorded directly to
accumulated other comprehensive income, a separate component of shareholders’ equity.
Foreign Currency Translation: The consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars. The assets and liabilities of
our Canadian subsidiary are translated to U.S. dollars at year-end exchange rates, while revenues and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates during the year. Adjustments that result from translating amounts are reported as a component of other
comprehensive income. The effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes on cash is reported on the Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows as a separate component of the reconciliation of the change in cash and cash equivalents during the period.
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities: We use an interest rate swap contract to reduce our exposure to interest rate
fluctuations on our variable rate revolving credit facility. This derivative instrument is recognized on the balance sheet at its estimated
fair value. We have designated the swap contract as a cash flow hedge. Accordingly, gains or losses from changes in its fair value that
are determined to be effective in offsetting changes in interest payment cash flows on the hedged amount of revolving credit facility
debt are reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as a component of ―Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)‖ (―hedge
accounting‖). Throughout the term of the swap contract, the unrealized gains or losses we have reported in accumulated other
comprehensive income will be recognized in earnings, when the variable interest rate of the debt affects earnings. We determine the
effective portion of a cash flow hedge’s gains or losses by comparing the cumulative change in the derivative’s fair value to the
cumulative change in the present value of the hedged item’s expected future cash flows. If the total cumulative change in fair value of
the derivative instrument exceeds the cumulative change in the present value of expected future cash flows of the hedged item, the
excess amount (representing the ―ineffective portion‖) of the derivative’s gains or losses, will be recorded immediately in earnings.
Ineffective portions of the changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges are recognized immediately in earnings.
At its inception and at least quarterly thereafter, we assess whether our interest rate swap contract continues to be highly effective
in offsetting changes in interest payment cash flows on the hedged amount of revolving credit facility debt. If we determine that it is
no longer probable that the underlying hedge transaction will occur, or the interest rate swap ceases to be a highly effective hedge, we
would discontinue our use of hedge accounting and recognize immediately in earnings any unrealized gains or losses included in
accumulated other comprehensive income.
Fair Value Disclosures: Fair value is defined as the price that we would receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer a liability (an
exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. In determining fair value, U.S. GAAP
establishes a three-level hierarchy used in measuring fair value, as follows:
Level 1 – inputs are quoted prices available for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.
Level 2 – inputs are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, including quoted prices for similar assets
and liabilities in active markets; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.
Level 3 – inputs are unobservable and reflect our own assumptions.
Our financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, our revolving credit
facility, capital lease obligations and an interest rate swap contract. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable and accounts payable approximates fair value because of their short maturities. We believe that the carrying amount of our
revolving credit facility approximates its fair value because the interest rates are adjusted regularly based on current market
conditions. The carrying amount of our capital lease obligations approximates fair value as interest rates charged are commensurate
with instruments with similar terms and risks. The fair value disclosures for our interest rate swap contract are presented in Note 7.
―Derivative Instrument.‖
We may adjust the carrying amount of certain nonfinancial assets to fair value on a non-recurring basis when they are impaired.
The fair value disclosures for stores we have impaired are presented in Note 4. ―Property and Equipment.‖

42

CEC ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
Stock-Based Compensation: We expense the fair value of stock-based compensation awards granted to our employees and
directors in the financial statements on a straight-line basis over the period that services are required to be provided in exchange for
the award (―requisite service period‖) which typically is the period over which the award vests. Stock-based compensation is
recognized only for awards that vest and our periodic accrual of compensation cost is based on the estimated number of awards
expected to vest. We measure the fair value of compensation cost related to restricted stock awards based on the closing market price
of our common stock on the grant date. We discontinued the granting of stock options in 2006 (refer to Note 12. ―Stock-Based
Compensation Plans‖) and all previously granted and currently outstanding stock options were fully vested as of the end of 2009. We
measured the fair value of compensation cost related stock option awards using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model which
required the input of subjective assumptions including estimating the length of time that employees will retain their stock options
before exercising them (―expected term‖), the estimated volatility of our common stock price over the expected term, and dividend
yield and risk-free interest rates.
The gross benefits of tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized from the vesting of restricted stock and
exercised stock options are tax effected and classified as cash inflows from financing activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows.
Revenue Recognition – Company Store Activities: Food, beverage and merchandise revenues are recognized when sold. Game
revenues are recognized as game-play tokens are purchased by customers and we accrue a liability for the estimated amount of unused
tokens which may be redeemed in the future. We allocate the revenue recognized from the sale of value-priced combination packages
generally comprised of food, beverage and game tokens (and in some instances, merchandise) between ―Food and beverage sales‖ and
―Entertainment and merchandise sales‖ based upon the price charged for each component when it is sold separately, or in limited
circumstances our best estimate of selling price if a component is not sold on a stand-alone basis, which we believe approximates each
component’s fair value.
We sell gift cards to our customers in our stores and through certain third party distributors which do not expire or incur a service
fee on unused balances. Gift card sales are recorded as an unearned gift card revenue liability when sold and are recognized as revenue
when: (i) the gift card is redeemed by the customer, or (ii) the likelihood of the gift card being redeemed by the customer is remote
(―gift card breakage‖) and we determine that we do not have a legal obligation to remit the value of the unredeemed gift card under
applicable state unclaimed property escheat statutes. Gift card breakage is determined based upon historical redemption patterns of our
gift cards; however, because we did not have sufficient historical information regarding such redemption patterns, we have not
recognized any material revenue from gift card breakage in our Consolidated Statements of Earnings prior to 2010. During the second
quarter of 2010, we concluded that we had sufficient historical transaction data to estimate breakage for gift cards we have been
selling in our stores and through certain third-party distributors, and based on our analysis we recorded a $0.6 million adjustment for
the initial recognition of breakage income related to unredeemed gift card balances. Breakage income from gift cards is included in
―Food and beverage sales.‖
Revenue Recognition – Franchise Fees and Royalties: Franchise fees and royalties include royalties charged to franchisees
based on a percentage of a franchised store’s sales and area development and initial franchise fees (collectively referred to as
―Franchise fees‖) received from franchisees to establish new stores and other miscellaneous sales to franchisees. Area development
and initial franchise fees are accrued as an unearned franchise revenue liability when received and are recognized as revenue when the
franchised stores covered by the fees open, which is generally when we have fulfilled all significant obligations to the franchisee.
Continuing royalties and other miscellaneous sales are recognized in the period earned. Franchise fees included in revenues were
approximately $0.4 million, $0.2 million, and $0.4 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Cost of Food, Beverage, Entertainment and Merchandise: Cost of food and beverage includes the direct cost of food and
beverage sold to our customers and related paper and birthday party supplies used in our food service operations, less ―vendor rebates‖
described below. Cost of entertainment and merchandise includes the direct cost of prizes provided and merchandise sold to our
customers, as well as the cost of tickets dispensed to customers and redeemed for prize items. These amounts exclude any allocation
of other operating costs including labor and related costs for store personnel and depreciation and amortization expense.
Vendor Rebates: We receive rebate payments primarily from a single third-party vendor. Pursuant to the terms of a volume
purchasing and promotional agreement entered into with the vendor, rebates are primarily provided based on the quantity of the
vendor’s products we purchase over the term of the agreement. We record these allowances in the period they are earned as a
reduction in the cost of the vendor's products, and when the related inventory is sold the allowances are recognized in ―Cost of food
and beverage‖ in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.
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CEC ENTERTAINMENT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
Rent Expense: We recognize rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, including the construction period and lease
renewal option periods provided for in the lease that can be reasonably assured at the inception of the lease. The lease term
commences on the date when we take possession and have the right to control use of the leased premises. The difference between
actual rent payments and rent expense in any period is recorded as a deferred rent liability in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Construction allowances received from the lessor as a lease incentive intended to reimburse us for the cost of leasehold improvements
(―Landlord contributions‖) are accrued as a deferred landlord contributions in the period construction is completed and the store
opens. Landlord contributions are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term as a reduction to rent expense.
Advertising Costs: Production costs for commercials and coupons are expensed in the period in which the commercials are
initially aired and the coupons are distributed. All other advertising costs are expensed as incurred. As of January 2, 2011 and January
3, 2010, capitalized production costs of approximately $1.2 million and $1.2 million, respectively, were included in ―Prepaid
expenses‖ on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
We and our franchisees are required to contribute a percentage of gross sales to advertising and media funds maintained by the
Association which are utilized to administer all the national advertising programs that benefit both us and our franchisees. As the
contributions to these funds are designated and segregated for advertising related activities, the Association acts as an agent for us and
our franchisees with regard to these contributions. We consolidate the advertising and media funds into our financial statements on a
net basis, whereby contributions from franchisees, when received, are recorded as offsets to reported advertising expenses. Our
contributions to these funds eliminate in consolidation. Contributions to the advertising and media funds from our franchisees were
approximately $2.2 million, $2.3 million, and $2.1 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Debt Financing Costs: We capitalize direct costs incurred to obtain long-term financing or establishment of credit facilities.
These costs are included in ―Other noncurrent assets‖ on the consolidated balance sheets and are amortized as an adjustment to
interest expense over the term of the related debt. In the case of debt refinancing or amending of a credit agreement, previously
capitalized debt financing costs are expensed if we determine there has been a substantial modification of the related borrowing
arrangement. As of January 2, 2011 and January 3, 2010, debt financing costs of approximately $0.5 million and $0.8 million,
respectively, were included in ―Other noncurrent assets.‖
Income Taxes: We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method which requires the recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. A valuation allowance is applied against net deferred tax
assets, if based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. Deferred income taxes are not provided on undistributed income from our Canadian subsidiary, as such, earnings are
considered to be permanently invested.
We maintain reserves to provide for potential tax exposures when, despite our belief that tax return positions are fully supported
by the applicable tax laws and regulations, we believe that certain positions may not be fully sustained upon review by taxing
authorities (referred to as a ―liability for unrecognized tax benefits‖ resulting from uncertain tax positions). We recognize the benefit
from an uncertain tax position in our consolidated financial statements at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than a 50 percent
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate resolution and settlement with the taxing authorities. We include interest related to
unrecognized tax benefits in ―Interest expense‖ and include related penalties in ―General and administrative expenses‖ on the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings.
Newly Adopted Accounting Guidance: As of the beginning of our 2010 fiscal year, we adopted a new accounting standard
amending the consolidation accounting requirements for a variable interest entity (―VIE‖) which now prescribes a qualitative
assessment for determining whether a variable interest gives an enterprise a controlling financial interest in a VIE. This new guidance
also requires separate presentation of the assets and liabilities of a consolidated VIE on the face of the balance sheet if specific criteria
are met. Our adoption of this new standard did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
Also in 2010, we adopted the amended accounting guidance contained in Accounting Standards Update 2010-06, which required
new and enhanced disclosures about recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements. This new guidance requires the disclosure
of changes in a measured item’s assignment among the levels within the three-tiered fair value hierarchy, clarifies existing
requirements concerning the disaggregation of fair value measurement disclosures for each class of assets and liabilities as well as
additional disclosure around the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value. Our adoption of this new guidance did not
have a significant impact on our disclosure of fair value measurements in our consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):
Accounting Guidance Not Yet Adopted: In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (―FASB‖) issued
Accounting Standards Update 2009-13 which amends the accounting and reporting guidance for arrangements comprised of multiple
products or services (―deliverables‖). The FASB’s revised guidance clarifies how an entity determines separate units of accounting in
a multiple-deliverable arrangement and requires that revenue be allocated to all arrangement deliverables using the relative selling
price method. The revised guidance is effective for the first annual reporting period beginning on or after June 15, 2010 and may be
applied prospectively as of the adoption date or retrospectively for all periods presented. Early adoption is permitted provided that the
revised guidance is retroactively applied to the beginning of the year of adoption. We will apply this guidance prospectively as of the
start of our 2011 fiscal year. We have evaluated this new accounting guidance and our adoption will not have a material effect on our
consolidated financial statements.
Revised Presentation and Reclassifications: We revised the presentation of our Consolidated Balance Sheets to disclose the
separate balances of our deferred rent and deferred landlord contributions liabilities. Previously, these balances were presented on the
consolidated balance sheets as a single deferred rent liability amount. In connection with this revised presentation, we also revised the
presentation in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows to reflect the change during the period in the deferred rent and deferred
landlord contributions balances. As a result, certain cash flows from operating activities amounts in the 2009 and 2008 consolidated
statements of cash flows have been reclassified to conform to the 2010 presentation. These revised financial statement presentations
and reclassifications did not affect previously reported cash flows from operating, investing or financing activities, results of
operations, or financial position for any periods presented.
2. Accounts Receivable:
Accounts receivable consisted of the following:

At Year End
2010
2009
(in thousands)

Trade receivables .................................................................................................................................. $
Vendor rebates ......................................................................................................................................
Income taxes receivable........................................................................................................................
Other accounts receivable .....................................................................................................................

6,840
7,703
15,320
2,374

$

7,308
9,286
5,930
4,507

$

32,237

$

27,031

Trade receivables consist primarily of debit and credit card receivables due from third-party financial institutions. The other
accounts receivable balance consists primarily of lease incentives, amounts due from our franchisees and amounts expected to be
recovered from third-party insurers through the stop-loss coverage we purchase for our self-insurance programs.
3.

Inventories:
Inventories consisted of the following:

At Year End
2010
2009
(in thousands)

Food and beverage ................................................................................................................................ $
Entertainment and merchandise ............................................................................................................

3,809
14,676

$

4,934
13,082

$

18,485

$

18,016

Food and beverage inventories include food, beverage, paper products and other supplies needed for our food service operations.
Entertainment and merchandise inventories consist primarily of novelty toy items used as redemption prizes for certain games that
may also be sold to our customers and birthday party and other supplies needed for our entertainment operations.
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4. Property and Equipment:
Property and equipment consisted of the following:

At Year End
2010
2009
(in thousands)

Land ...................................................................................................................................................... $
Buildings ..............................................................................................................................................
Leasehold improvements ......................................................................................................................
Game and ride equipment .....................................................................................................................
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment ...............................................................................................
Property leased under capital leases (Note 8) .......................................................................................

43,927
109,977
554,676
268,156
220,046
16,673

$

43,927
105,220
512,467
246,145
220,427
16,020

Less accumulated depreciation .............................................................................................................

1,213,455
(541,043)

1,144,206
(489,587)

Net property and equipment in service ............................................................................................
Construction in progress .......................................................................................................................

672,412
10,780

654,619
8,128

$

683,192

$

662,747

Property leased under capital leases consists primarily of buildings for our store locations. Accumulated amortization related to
these assets was approximately $7.9 million and $6.9 million as of January 3, 2011 and January 2, 2010, respectively. Amortization of
assets under capital leases is included in depreciation and amortization expense.
Total depreciation and amortization expense was approximately $80.7 million, $78.1 million and $75.4 million in 2010, 2009 and
2008, respectively (approximately $1.0 million, $1.0 million and $0.6 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, was recorded in
―General and administrative expenses.‖
Sale of TJ Hartford’s
In April 2008, we sold substantially all of the property and equipment related to our former TJ Hartford’s Grill and Bar (―TJ
Hartford’s‖) casual dining restaurant. Assets consisting primarily of land, a building and fixtures and equipment with a net carrying
amount of approximately $1.3 million were sold for cash proceeds of approximately $2.1 million. In connection with this sale, we
recognized a $0.8 million gain included in ―Other store operating expenses‖ in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.
Asset Impairments
In 2010, we recognized asset impairment charges of $0.9 million related to three stores we continue to operate due to the adverse
impact of various economic factors in the markets in which the properties are located and resulting decline in the stores’ financial
performance. We did not record any asset impairment charges in 2009. In 2008, we recorded total asset impairment charges of $0.3
million consisting of a $0.1 million charge related to a previously impaired store and a $0.2 million charge pertaining to a store we
decided to close prior to the end of its expected lease term.
Asset impairments represent adjustments we record to write down the carrying amount of the property and equipment at our
stores to their estimated fair value. We estimate the fair value of a store’s property and equipment by discounting the expected future
cash flows of the store over its remaining lease term using a weighted average cost of capital. Accordingly, the inputs to our fair value
measurement of the stores we have recognized impairment charges for are classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. In
2010, we impaired assets at our stores with a carrying amount of approximately $1.4 million to a fair value of $0.5 million.
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5. Accrued Expenses:
Accrued expenses consisted of the following:

At Year End
2010
2009
(in thousands)

Current:
Salaries and wages .......................................................................................................................... $
Insurance .........................................................................................................................................
Taxes, other than income.................................................................................................................
Other accrued operating expenses ...................................................................................................

12,722
6,862
8,516
4,868

$

12,373
7,605
9,207
4,742

$

32,968

$

33,927

Noncurrent:
Insurance ......................................................................................................................................... $

13,144

$

12,068

Accrued insurance represents estimated claims incurred but unpaid under our self-insurance programs for general liability,
workers’ compensation, health benefits and certain other insured risks.
6. Revolving Credit Facility:
At Year End
2010
2009
(in thousands)
Revolving credit facility borrowings .................................................................................................... $

377,000

$

354,300

We have a revolving credit facility providing for total borrowings of up to $550.0 million. The credit facility, which matures in
October 2012, also includes an accordion feature allowing us, subject to lender approval, to request an increase to the revolving
commitment of up to $50.0 million in borrowings at any time. As of January 2, 2011, there were $377.0 million of borrowings
outstanding and approximately $10.7 million of letters of credit issued but undrawn under the credit facility. Based on the type of
borrowing, the credit facility bears interest at the London Interbank Offered Rate (―LIBOR‖) plus an applicable margin of 0.625% to
1.25% determined based on our financial performance and debt levels, or alternatively, the higher of (a) the prime rate or (b) the
Federal Funds rate plus 0.50%. As of January 2, 2011, borrowings under the credit facility incurred interest at LIBOR (ranging from
0.26% - 0.28%) plus 1.00% or prime (3.25%). A commitment fee of 0.1% to 0.3%, depending on our financial performance and debt
levels, is payable on a quarterly basis on any unused credit line. All borrowings under the credit facility are unsecured, but we have
agreed not to pledge any of our existing assets to secure future indebtedness.
Including the effect of our interest rate swap contract discussed in Note 7. ―Derivative Instrument,‖ the weighted average
effective interest rate incurred on borrowings under our revolving credit facility was 2.9%, 2.9%, and 4.2% in 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.
The revolving credit facility agreement contains certain restrictions and conditions that, among other things, require us to comply
with financial covenant ratios, including a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.5 to 1.0 and a maximum leverage ratio of 3.0 to
1.0, as defined in the revolving credit agreement. Additionally, the terms of the revolving credit facility agreement limit the amount of
our repurchases of our common stock and cash dividends we may pay on our common stock based on certain financial covenants and
criteria. As of January 2, 2011, we were in compliance with these covenants.
7. Derivative Instrument:
Our revolving credit facility bears interest at variable rates and therefore exposes us to the impact of interest rate changes. To
manage this risk, we use an interest rate swap contract to mitigate the variability of the interest payment cash flows and to reduce our
exposure to adverse interest rate changes.
We have entered into a $150.0 million notional amount interest rate swap contract to effectively convert a portion of our variable
rate revolving credit facility debt to a fixed interest rate. The contract, which matures in May 2011, requires us to pay a fixed rate of
3.62% while receiving variable payments from the counterparty at the three-month LIBOR rate. Including the 1.00 percentage point
applicable margin incurred on our revolving credit facility, the effective interest rate of the swap contract was 4.62% at January 2,
2011. The differential amounts receivable or payable under the swap contract are recorded over the life of the contract as adjustments
to interest expense.
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7. Derivative Instrument (continued):
The following table summarizes the location and fair value of the derivative instrument in our Consolidated Balance Sheets:
At Year End
2010
2009
(in thousands)

Balance Sheet Location
Derivative designated as hedging instrument

$
1,976 $
5,613
Interest rate swap contract ..................................................................................................................................................................
Derivative instrument liability(1) (2) ..................................................................................

______________
(1)
As of January 2, 2011, the estimated fair value was recorded as a $2.0 million current liability.
(2)
As of January 3, 2010, the estimated fair value was comprised of a $4.5 million current liability and a $1.2 million noncurrent liability.

Our interest rate swap contract is not traded on a public exchange. Therefore, its fair value is determined using the present value
of expected future cash flows arising from the contract which approximates an amount to be received from or paid to a market
participant for this instrument. This valuation methodology utilizes forward interest rate yield curves obtained from an independent
pricing service’s quotes of three-month forward LIBOR rates through the swap contract’s maturity. Accordingly, the inputs to our fair
value measurement of the interest rate swap are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
The following table summarizes the effect of the derivative instrument on other comprehensive income (―OCI‖) and income:
Fiscal Year
2010
2009
2008
(in thousands, excluding income tax effects)

Derivative in cash flow hedging relationship
Loss recognized in accumulated OCI – effective portion:
Interest rate swap contract .............................................................................. $

(1,345) $

(2,841) $

(7,810)

Loss reclassified from accumulated OCI into income – effective portion:
Interest expense .............................................................................................. $

(4,982) $

(4,155) $

(882)

There were no ineffective gains or losses recognized in 2010, 2009 or 2008. We expect that approximately $1.2 million, net of
taxes, of the change in fair value of the swap contract included in ―Accumulated other comprehensive income‖ as of January 2, 2011
will be realized in earnings as additional interest expense within the next 12 months.
8. Commitments and Contingencies:
Leases
We lease certain store locations and related property and equipment under operating and capital leases. All leases require us to
pay property taxes, insurance and maintenance of the leased assets. The leases generally have initial terms of 10 to 20 years with
various renewal options.
Future minimum lease payments as of January 2, 2011 are as follows:
Fiscal Years
2011 ...................................................................................................................................................... $
2012 ......................................................................................................................................................
2013 ......................................................................................................................................................
2014 ......................................................................................................................................................
2015 ......................................................................................................................................................
Thereafter .............................................................................................................................................

Capital
Operating
(in thousands)
$

73,175
72,872
72,380
71,845
71,242
596,621

Minimum future lease payments .....................................................................................................
Less amounts representing interest (interest rates from 6.00% to 16.63%) .....................................

16,383 $
(5,121)

958,135

Present value of future minimum lease payments ...........................................................................
Less current portion.........................................................................................................................

11,262
(936)

Capital lease obligations, net of current portion .............................................................................. $

10,326
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8. Commitments and Contingencies (continued):
Rent expense, including contingent rent based on a percentage of sales when applicable, was comprised of the following:
2010
Minimum rentals ........................................................................................................ $
Contingent rentals.......................................................................................................
$

71,234
185

Fiscal Year
2009
(in thousands)

2008

$

68,414
273

$

66,599
321

71,419 $

68,687

$

66,920

Rent expense of approximately $1.0 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008 related primarily to our corporate office and warehouse
facilities and was recorded among ―General and administrative expenses‖ in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.
Legal Proceedings
From time to time, we are involved in various inquiries, investigations, claims, lawsuits, and other legal proceedings that are
incidental to the conduct of our business. These matters typically involve claims from customers, employees or other third parties
involved in operational issues common to the retail, restaurant and entertainment industries. Such matters typically represent actions
with respect to contracts, intellectual property, taxation, employment, employee benefits, personal injuries and other matters. A
number of such claims may exist at any given time and there are currently a number of claims and legal proceedings pending against
us.
In the opinion of our management, after consultation with legal counsel, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to claims or
proceedings currently pending against us is not expected to have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.
9. Income Taxes:
The components of income tax expense are as follows:
2010
Current tax expense (benefit):
Federal ................................................................................................................... $
State.......................................................................................................................
Foreign ..................................................................................................................
Deferred tax expense (benefit):
Federal ...................................................................................................................
State.......................................................................................................................
Foreign ..................................................................................................................
Income tax expense ........................................................................................... $

24,131
6,660
725

Fiscal Year
2009
(in thousands)
$

24,541
4,380
252

2008

$

28,240
5,577
(260)

31,516

29,173

9,903
(1,959)
(734)

10,823
(994)
(1,248)

402
(431)
609

7,210

8,581

580

38,726 $

37,754

33,557

$

34,137

A reconciliation of the 35% federal statutory income tax rate to the effective tax rates is as follows:
2010

Fiscal Year
2009

2008

Federal statutory rate ..................................................................................................
State income taxes, net of federal benefit ...................................................................
Federal income tax credits, net ...................................................................................
Other ...........................................................................................................................

35.0%
4.0
(0.6)
3.3

35.0%
3.4
(0.8)
0.6

35.0%
3.7
(0.8)
(0.2)

Effective tax rate................................................................................................

41.7%

38.2%

37.7%
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9. Income Taxes (continued):

______________
We have revised the presentation in the table above reconciling our effective tax rates to better reflect the effect of our federal income tax
credits and as a result the 2009 and 2008 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2010 presentation. This revision did not affect
our previously reported results of operations or financial position for any of the periods presented.

Our 2010 effective income tax rate included net unfavorable adjustments of $3.0 million, which included $2.4 million we
reflected during the second quarter, primarily resulting from adjustments made to our tax accounts identified as a result of an Internal
Revenue Service (―IRS‖) examination of our 2006 and 2007 tax years, various return-to-provision adjustments, and offsetting
favorable adjustments related to California enterprise zone tax credits.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities consisted of the following:

At Year End
2010
2009
(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued vacation ............................................................................................................................. $
Unearned gift cards .........................................................................................................................
Deferred rent ...................................................................................................................................
Stock-based compensation ..............................................................................................................
Insurance .........................................................................................................................................
Unrecognized tax benefits (1) ...........................................................................................................
Other................................................................................................................................................
Gross deferred tax assets .............................................................................................................

1,836
2,782
20,025
2,657
8,055
2,679
2,620

$

1,687
2,124
17,538
3,859
7,237
2,141
4,165

40,654

38,751

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation ....................................................................................................................................
Other................................................................................................................................................

(78,972)
(1,300)

(68,566)
(483)

Gross deferred tax liabilities ........................................................................................................

(80,272)

(69,049)

Net deferred tax liability .............................................................................................................. $

(39,618) $

(30,298)

Amounts reported on consolidated balance sheets:
Current deferred tax asset ................................................................................................................ $
Noncurrent deferred tax liability .....................................................................................................

3,420 $
(43,038)

3,392
(33,690)

$

(39,618) $

(30,298)

______________
(1)
Amount represents the value of future tax benefits that would result if the liabilities for unrecognized state tax benefits, including related
interest, are settled.

We file numerous income tax returns in U.S. federal, state, local, and foreign jurisdictions. As a matter of ordinary course, we are
subject to regular examination by various tax authorities. The federal statute of limitations has expired and we are no longer subject to
U.S. federal income examinations for our federal tax returns filed for tax years ended before 2006. Currently, certain of our state
income tax returns are under examination and are at various stages of the audit/appeals process. In general, the state tax returns that
are open to audit range from 2003 through 2009 and the Canadian tax years open to audit include 2006 through 2009.
In December 2010, an IRS examination of our 2006 and 2007 tax years was concluded and we paid taxes of $2.5 million and
related interest of $0.6 million, all of which was accrued prior to the fourth quarter of 2010.
In 2008, the IRS concluded an examination of our 2003 through 2005 tax years and we agreed to a $6.3 million settlement of
certain issues identified in the audit. This amount was fully reserved at December 30, 2007, and payment was made in the third quarter
of 2008. There also arose from this examination certain pending issues that totaled $2.6 million, and we filed an appeal with respect to
such unresolved matters in the third quarter of 2008. We settled the remaining issues with the IRS during the third quarter of 2009
and, as a result, recognized a benefit of approximately $1.1 million from a reduction in our estimated penalties and interest reserves
for uncertain tax positions.
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9. Income Taxes (continued):
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:
2010
Balance at beginning of period .................................................................................. $
Additions for tax positions related to the current year...........................................
Increases for tax positions of prior years ...............................................................
Decreases for tax positions of prior years .............................................................
Settlement with tax authorities ..............................................................................
Expiration of statute of limitations ........................................................................
Balance at end of period ............................................................................................. $

Fiscal Year
2009
(in thousands)

5,113 $
550
2,989
(390)
(3,899)
4,363

$

2008

5,009 $
642
1,022
(857)
(397)
(306)
5,113

$

10,893
520
426
(132)
(6,329)
(369)
5,009

Included in the balance as of January 2, 2011, are approximately $2.8 million of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized,
would decrease our provision for income taxes. Within the next twelve months, we expect to settle or otherwise conclude certain
ongoing state income tax audits. As such, it is possible that the unrecognized tax benefits would change within the next twelve
months. However, the change in the unrecognized tax benefits cannot be estimated at this time.
Interest expense related to unrecognized tax benefits was $1.1 million, $0.5 million and $1.0 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. Penalties expense related to unrecognized tax benefits was $0.3 million in 2010. During 2009 and 2008, we recognized a
net benefit of approximately of $0.6 million and $0.5 million, respectively, from the reduction in our estimated penalties reserve for
unrecognized tax benefits. The total amount of interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits as of January 2,
2011 and January 3, 2010 was $3.0 million and $2.6 million, respectively.
10. Earnings Per Share:
Basic earnings per share (―EPS‖) represents net income divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted EPS represents net income divided by the basic weighted average number of common shares plus, if
dilutive, potential common shares outstanding during the period. Potential common shares consist of the incremental common shares
issuable upon the exercise of outstanding stock options and unvested shares of restricted stock. The dilutive effect of potential
common shares is determined using the treasury stock method, whereby outstanding stock options are assumed exercised at the
beginning of the reporting period and the exercise proceeds from such stock options, unamortized compensation cost of unvested
restricted stock, and excess tax benefits arising in connection with these stock-based awards are assumed to be used to repurchase our
common stock at the average market price during the period.
The following table sets forth the computation of EPS, basic and diluted:

Fiscal Year
2010
2009
2008
(in thousands, except per share data)

Numerator:
Net income ............................................................................................................ $

54,034 $

61,194

Denominator:
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding ............................................
Potential common shares for stock options and restricted stock ...........................
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding .........................................

21,163
41
21,204

22,835
98
22,933

Earnings per share:
Basic ...................................................................................................................... $
Diluted ................................................................................................................... $

2.55
2.55

$
$

2.68
2.67

$

56,494
23,825
374
24,199

$
$

2.37
2.33

Stock options to purchase 102,816 shares, 694,005 shares and 998,254 shares of our common stock were not included in the
diluted EPS computations in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, because the exercise prices of these options were greater than the
average market price of the common shares and, therefore, their effect would be antidilutive.
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11. Stockholders’ Equity:
We have one class of common capital stock, our common stock, as disclosed on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Holders of our
common stock are entitled to one vote per share held on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders.
Our articles of incorporation authorize our Board of Directors (―Board‖), at its discretion, to issue up to 500,000 shares of Class
B Preferred Stock (―Preferred B Stock‖), par value $100.00. Preferred B Stock may be issued in one or more series and are entitled to
dividends, voting powers, liquidation preferences, conversion and redemption rights, and certain other rights and preferences as
determined by the Board. As of January 2, 2011 and January 3, 2010, there were no shares of Preferred B Stock issued or outstanding.
Stock Repurchase Program
Our Board has approved a program for us to repurchase shares of our common stock. On July 25, 2005, the Board approved a
stock repurchase program which authorized us to repurchase from time to time up to $400 million of our common stock and on
October 22, 2007 and October 27, 2009 authorized $200 million increases each. During 2010, 2009 and 2008, we repurchased
2,184,515 shares, 1,775,089 shares and 4,911,041 shares, respectively, of our common stock at an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $77.6 million, $52.6 million and $160.8 million, respectively, under the repurchase program. As of January 2, 2011,
approximately $141.1 million remained available for share repurchases under our repurchase authorization.
The share repurchase authorization approved by the Board does not have an expiration date and the pace of our repurchase
activity will depend on factors such as our working capital needs, our debt repayment obligations, our stock price, and economic and
market conditions. Our share repurchases may be effected from time to time through open market purchases, accelerated share
repurchases or in privately negotiated transactions. Our share repurchase program may be accelerated, suspended, delayed or
discontinued at any time.
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
The following table summarizes changes in the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes:

Cash Flow
Hedge

Foreign
Currency
(in thousands)

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Balance at December 31, 2007 ............................................................................... $
Change in derivative instrument ........................................................................
Foreign currency translation adjustments ..........................................................

- $
(4,295)
-

Balance at December 28, 2008 ...............................................................................
Change in derivative instrument ........................................................................
Foreign currency translation adjustments ..........................................................

(4,295)
815
-

2,403
2,217

(1,892)
815
2,217

Balance at January 3, 2010 .....................................................................................
Change in derivative instrument ........................................................................
Foreign currency translation adjustments ..........................................................

(3,480)
2,259
-

4,620
1,123

1,140
2,259
1,123

Balance at January 2, 2011 ..................................................................................... $

(1,221) $

5,743
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12. Stock-Based Compensation Plans:
We have stock-based compensation plans pursuant to which we may grant awards of restricted stock to our employees and nonemployee directors. In conjunction with stockholder approval of the restricted stock plans in fiscal year 2006, we discontinued the
granting of stock options. The expense associated with previously granted stock options was recognized in the financial statements
through 2009.
The following table summarizes stock-based compensation expense and associated tax benefit recognized in the consolidated
financial statements:
Fiscal Year
2010
2009
2008
(in thousands)
Total stock-based compensation cost ......................................................................................................................................................
$
7,529 $
8,154 $
6,173
(191)
(220)
(193)
Portion capitalized as property and equipment(1) ................................................................................................................................
$
7,338 $
7,934 $
5,980
Stock-based compensation expense recognized(2) ............................................................................................................................
Tax benefit recognized from stock-based compensation awards ................................ $

2,839 $

3,054 $

2,272

______________
(1)
Capitalized stock-based compensation cost attributable to our store development projects included in ―Property and equipment, net‖ on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
(2)
Included in ―General and administrative expense‖ in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

Restricted Stock Plans
We have adopted a restricted stock plan for our employees under which 2,300,000 shares are authorized to be granted before
December 31, 2014. Shares awarded under the employee restricted stock plan provide for a vesting period of at least one year and no
more than five years, and the full award may not vest in less than three years, subject to the terms of the employee restricted stock
plan. The employee restricted stock plan provides for the granting of restricted stock units; however, as of January 2, 2011 none have
been issued. We have also adopted a restricted stock plan for our non-employee directors under which 215,000 shares are authorized
to be granted before May 1, 2020. Shares awarded under the non-employee directors restricted stock plan provide for a vesting period
of four years. As of January 2, 2011, a total of 1,418,427 shares remained available for future grant under our current restricted stock
plans. Shares of unvested stock issued under a restricted stock award are nontransferable and subject to the forfeiture restrictions.
Unvested shares which are forfeited or cancelled may be re-granted under the plan.
The following table summarizes 2010 restricted stock activity for all plans (not presented in thousands):

Restricted
Shares

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Unvested restricted stock awards, January 3, 2010 .....................................................
Granted ...................................................................................................................
Vested.....................................................................................................................
Forfeited .................................................................................................................

712,227
244,090
(258,692)
(49,390)

$
$
$
$

27.68
35.74
29.23
30.26

Unvested restricted stock awards, January 2, 2011 .....................................................

648,235

$

29.90

In 2009 and 2008, we granted 352,435 shares and 345,542 shares of restricted stock, respectively, at a weighted average grant
date fair value of $24.66 and $26.74 per share, respectively. The awards we have granted since initiating our restricted stock grants in
2006 have had vesting periods of four years and 2010 represents the first year any awards have become fully vested. The total fair
value of shares that vested during 2010, 2009 and 2008 was $7.6 million, $4.4 million and $3.6 million, respectively. On January 7,
2011, we granted an additional 18,088 shares at a grant date fair value of $38.59 per share under the non-employee directors restricted
stock plan. As of January 2, 2011, unrecognized pretax stock-based compensation cost related to restricted stock awards was $13.0
million which will be recognized over a weighted average remaining vesting period of 1.7 years.
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12. Stock-Based Compensation Plans (continued):
Stock Option Plans
We discontinued the granting of stock options in 2006. Under the stock option plans, employees and non-employee directors
were granted options to purchase our common stock at a price equal to the market price of the underlying shares on the date of grant.
The stock options we granted had vesting periods of one to four years and expire from five to seven years from the date of grant. As of
January 2, 2011, all previously granted and currently outstanding stock options were fully vested and, if unexercised, will expire at
various dates through March 2012. We issue new shares of our common stock when options are exercised.
The following table summarizes 2010 stock option activity and related information for all plans (except as otherwise noted, not
presented in thousands):
Weighted
Weighted
Average
Average
Remaining
Aggregate
Option
Exercise
Contractual
Intrinsic
Shares
Price
Term (years)
Value(1)
(in thousands)
Options outstanding, January 3, 2010 ....................
Granted .............................................................
Exercised ..........................................................
Forfeited/cancelled ...........................................

543,338
(181,043)
(300,845)

$
$
$

35.19
31.99
36.66

Options outstanding, January 2, 2011....................

61,450

$

37.41

0.9

$

89

Options exercisable, January 2, 2011 ....................

61,450

$

37.41

0.9

$

89

______________
(1)
Aggregate intrinsic value represents the difference between the closing market price of our common stock on the last day of the fiscal
year, which was $38.83 on January 2, 2011, and the exercise price multiplied by the number of options outstanding.

Cash proceeds from the exercise of stock options totaled $5.8 million, $19.7 million, and $19.2 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. Stock options exercised during 2010, 2009 and 2008 had an aggregate intrinsic value (the amount by which the closing
market price of our common stock on the date of exercise exceeded the exercise price multiplied by the number of shares) of $1.2
million, $10.6 million and $5.6 million respectively. All previously granted and currently outstanding stock options are fully vested.
As such there is no unrecognized stock-based compensation cost related to stock options.
13. Employee Benefit Plan:
We have adopted the CEC 401(k) Retirement and Savings Plan (the ―401(k) Plan‖), a defined contribution profit sharing plan that
allows participants to defer a portion of their annual compensation on a pretax basis. Only non-highly compensated employees, as
determined by the Internal Revenue Service, who are at least 18 years of age and who have completed minimum service requirements
are eligible to participate in the 401(k) Plan. Each year, at our discretion, we may make an annual contribution to the 401(k) Plan out
of our current or accumulated earnings. We made contributions in the form of our common stock of approximately $0.6 million, $0.6
million and $0.5 million for the 2009, 2008 and 2007 plan years, respectively. Commencing with the 2010 plan year, our discretionary
contributions are based on a participant’s years of continuous employment and our comparable store sales for the year. As of January
2, 2011, we had accrued approximately $0.5 million for our contributions for the 2010 plan year, which will be paid in cash during
fiscal 2011. As of January 2, 2011, 36,822 shares of our common stock remained available for future contributions to the 401(k) Plan.
However, we currently intend to pay future contributions in cash.
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14. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited):
The following table summarizes our unaudited quarterly results of operations in 2010 and 2009:
April 4,
2010

Quarters in Fiscal Year 2010
July 4,
Oct. 3,
Jan. 2,
2010
2010
2011
(in thousands, except per share data)

Food and beverage sales ................................................................... $
Entertainment and merchandise sales ...............................................

121,016
124,184

Company store sales ....................................................................
Franchise fees and royalties ........................................................

245,200
1,127

180,129
857

206,199
945

181,605
1,186

Total revenues ..................................................................................
Operating income .............................................................................
Income before income taxes .............................................................
Net income (1) ....................................................................................

246,327
57,215
54,545
33,862

180,986
14,711
11,269
4,778

207,144
23,726
20,775
12,581

182,791
9,250
6,171
2,813

Earnings per share:
Basic ............................................................................................
Diluted .........................................................................................

$
$

$

1.53
1.53

89,064
91,065

$
$

$

0.22
0.22

99,452
106,747

$
$

$

0.60
0.60

88,709
92,896

$
$

0.14
0.14

Quarters in Fiscal Year 2009 (2)
March 29,
June 28,
Sept. 27,
Jan. 3,
2009
2009
2009
2010
(in thousands, except per share data)
Food and beverage sales ................................................................... $
Entertainment and merchandise sales ...............................................

128,479
118,581

Company store sales ....................................................................
Franchise fees and royalties ........................................................

247,060
1,073

183,799
996

196,920
898

186,784
816

Total revenues ..................................................................................
Operating income .............................................................................
Income before income taxes .............................................................
Net income .......................................................................................

248,133
59,214
56,140
34,052

184,795
16,955
13,860
8,994

197,818
23,435
20,666
12,711

187,600
11,361
8,282
5,437

Earnings per share:
Basic ............................................................................................
Diluted .........................................................................................

$
$

1.49
1.48

$

91,123
92,676

$
$

0.39
0.39

$

95,060
101,860

$
$

0.55
0.55

$

91,973
94,811

$
$

0.24
0.24

______________
(1)
Net income included the effect of net unfavorable income tax adjustments of $3.0 million, which included $2.4 million we reflected
during the second quarter, primarily resulting from adjustments made to our tax accounts identified as a result of an IRS examination of
our 2006 and 2007 tax years, various return-to-provision adjustments, and offsetting favorable adjustments related to California enterprise
zone tax credits.
(2)
Our 2009 fiscal year consisted of 53 weeks. Each quarterly period had 13 weeks, except for the fourth quarterly period ended January 3,
2010 which had 14 weeks.

Quarterly operating results are not necessarily representative of operations for a full year. EPS amounts in each quarter are
computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the quarter and may not sum to EPS for the full year,
which is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the full year.
15. Subsequent Events:
On February 22, 2011, our Board approved the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend of $0.20 per share, or $0.80 per share for
each year. Due to the timing of the Board’s decision, dividends paid during the 2011 fiscal year are expected to be $0.60 per share.
Our first quarterly dividend of $0.20 per share will be paid on April 21, 2011 to shareholders of record on March 24, 2011.
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.
ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We performed an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as of
the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, has concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of January 2, 2011 to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
was (1) recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s rules and forms, and (2) accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any control and procedures, no
matter how well designed and operated, can provide only a reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives.
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. As defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f), internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and effected by our Board of Directors, management and other personnel, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and our directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. Because of its
inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, assessed the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of January 2, 2011 based on the criteria established in ―Internal Control — Integrated Framework‖
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our management’s assessment, we
have concluded that, as of January 2, 2011, our internal control over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria.
Deloitte & Touche LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited our financial statements included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, has issued an attestation report on our internal control over financial reporting as of January 2, 2011,
which is included in Item 8. ―Financial Statements and Supplementary Data‖ under the caption ―Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm.‖
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
During the quarterly period ended January 2, 2011, there has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
ITEM 9B. Other Information.
None.
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PART III
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.
The information required by this Item regarding our directors and executive officers is incorporated by reference from and will be
included in our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with our 2011 Annual Meeting under
the captions ―Proposal 1: Election of Directors‖, ―Corporate Governance‖, ―Additional Information Regarding the Executive
Officers‖, ―Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance‖, and ―Audit Committee Disclosure‖.
We have adopted a Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer, President and Senior Financial Officers (the "Code of Ethics")
that applies to the Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer and principal accounting officer. Changes to and
waivers granted with respect to the Code of Ethics related to the above named officers required to be disclosed pursuant to applicable
rules and regulations will also be posted on our website at www.chuckecheese.com.
ITEM 11. Executive Compensation.
The information required by this Item regarding our directors and executive officers is incorporated by reference from and will be
included in our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with our 2011 Annual Meeting under
the captions ―Meetings and Committees of the Boards of Directors‖, ―Compensation Discussion and Analysis‖, ―Compensation
Committee Report‖, ―Executive Compensation‖ and ―Director Compensation‖.
ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from and will be included in our definitive Proxy Statement to
be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with our 2011 Annual Meeting under the captions ―Securities Authorized for
Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans‖ and ―Security Ownership‖.
ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Directors Independence.
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from and will be included in our definitive Proxy Statement to
be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with our 2011 Annual Meeting under the captions ―Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions‖ and ―Meetings and Committees of the Board of Directors.‖
ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from and will be included in our definitive Proxy Statement to
be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with our 2011 Annual Meeting under the caption ―Audit Committee Disclosure –
Service Fees Billed in 2010 and 2009 by the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.‖
PART IV
ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) Documents filed as a part of this report:
(1) Financial Statements.
The financial statements included in Item 8. ―Financial Statements and Supplementary Data‖ are filed as a part of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. See ―Index to Consolidated Financial Statements.‖
(2) Financial Statement Schedules.
There are no financial statement schedules filed as a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, since the circumstances
requiring inclusion of such schedules are not present.
(3) Exhibits.
The exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K are listed in the Exhibit Index, which Exhibit Index is incorporated
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K by reference.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Dated: February 24, 2011

CEC Entertainment, Inc.
/s/ Michael H. Magusiak
Michael H. Magusiak
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature
/s/ Michael H. Magusiak

Title

Date

President, Chief Executive Officer
and
Director (Principal Executive
Officer)

February 24, 2011

/s/ Tiffany B. Kice
Tiffany B. Kice

Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)

February 24, 2011

/s/ Darin E. Harper
Darin E. Harper

Vice President, Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

February 24, 2011

/s/ Richard M. Frank
Richard M. Frank

Executive Chairman of the Board
of Directors

February 24, 2011

/s/ Tommy R. Franks
Tommy R. Franks

Director

February 24, 2011

/s/ Richard T. Huston
Richard T. Huston

Director

February 24, 2011

/s/ Tim T. Morris
Tim T. Morris

Director

February 24, 2011

/s/ Louis P. Neeb
Louis P. Neeb

Director

February 24, 2011

/s/ Cynthia Pharr Lee
Cynthia Pharr Lee

Director

February 24, 2011

/s/ Walter Tyree
Walter Tyree

Director

February 24, 2011

/s/ Raymond E. Wooldridge
Raymond E. Wooldridge

Director

February 24, 2011

Michael H. Magusiak
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number

Description

3.1

Second Restated Articles of Incorporation of CEC Entertainment, Inc. (the ―Company‖) dated May 4, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-13687) as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the ―Commission‖) on May 6, 2010)

3.2

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company dated May 4, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-13687) as filed with the Commission on May 6, 2010)

4.1

Second Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company dated May 4, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-13687) as filed with the Commission on May 6,
2010)

4.2

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company dated May 4, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-13687) as filed with the Commission on May 6, 2010)

4.3

Specimen form of Certificate representing $.10 par value Common Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-13687) as filed with the Commission on October 29,
2009)

10.1

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated October 19, 2007 by and among CEC Entertainment
Concepts, L.P., as the Borrower, the Company, as a Guarantor, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent,
Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer, J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Syndication Agent, Wachovia Bank, N.A.
and SunTrust Bank, as Co-Documentation Agents, Banc of America Securities LLC and J.P. Morgan Securities,
Inc., as Co-Lead Arrangers and Co-Book Managers and the other lenders party thereto (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-13687) as filed with the Commission
on October 23, 2007)

10.2 §

Richard M. Frank 2010 Employment Agreement dated February 23, 2010 by and between Richard M. Frank and
the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No.
001-13687) as filed with the Commission on February 26, 2010)

10.3 §

Michael H. Magusiak 2010 Employment Agreement dated February 23, 2010 by and between Michael H.
Magusiak and the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K (File No. 001-13687) as filed with the Commission on February 26, 2010)

10.4 §

1997 Non-Statutory Stock Option Plan (incorporated by referenced to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-119218) as filed with the Commission on September 23, 2004)

10.5 §

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Company’s 1997 Non-Statutory Stock Option Plan (incorporated by
referenced to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-13687) as filed with the
Commission on February 20, 2009)

10.6 §

Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-119225) as filed with the Commission on September 23, 2004)

10.7 §

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Company’s Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan (incorporated
by referenced to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-13687) as filed with
the Commission on February 20, 2009)

10.8 §

CEC Entertainment, Inc. Third Amended and Restated 2004 Restricted Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-13687) as filed with the Commission on
May 6, 2010)

10.9 § *

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Company’s Third Amended and Restated 2004 Restricted Stock
Plan

10.10 §

CEC Entertainment, Inc. Second Amended and Restated Non-Employee Directors Restricted Stock Plan effective
as of May 4, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-13687) as filed with the Commission on August 5, 2010)

Exhibit
Number

Description

10.11 § *

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Non-Employee
Directors Restricted Stock Plan

10.12 §

Summary of Director Compensation (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement (File
No. 001-13687) as filed with the Commission on March 22, 2010 under the section entitled ―Director
Compensation‖ on page 56)

10.13 §

Summary of Incentive Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement (File
No. 001-13687) as filed with the Commission on March 22, 2010 under the section entitled ―Compensation
Discussion and Analysis—How We Determine the Amount and Material Terms of Each Element of
Compensation—Cash Bonus—Incentive Bonus Plan‖ on page 32)

21.1

Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K (File No. 001-13687) as filed with the Commission on February 26, 2010)

23.1 *

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1 *

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

31.2 *

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

32.1 **

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 **

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS †

XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH †

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL †

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF †

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB †

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE †

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

______________
* Filed herewith.
** Furnished herewith.
§ Management contract or compensatory plan, contract or arrangement.
† Pursuant to Item 406T of Regulation S-T, these interactive data files are deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or
prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 or Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
and otherwise are not subject to liability.

EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a – 14(a)/15d-14(a)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(Chief Executive Officer)
I, Michael H. Magusiak, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 2, 2011 of CEC Entertainment, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

February 24, 2011

/s/ Michael H. Magusiak
Michael H. Magusiak
President and Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a – 14(a)/15d-14(a)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(Chief Financial Officer)
I, Tiffany B. Kice, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 2, 2011 of CEC Entertainment, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

February 24, 2011

/s/ Tiffany B. Kice
Tiffany B. Kice
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer

EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(Chief Executive Officer)
In connection with the Annual Report of CEC Entertainment, Inc. (the ―Company‖) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
January 2, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the ―Report‖), the undersigned certifies,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company as of, and for, the periods presented in this Report.

February 24, 2011

/s/ Michael H. Magusiak
Michael H. Magusiak
President and Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(Chief Financial Officer)
In connection with the Annual Report of CEC Entertainment, Inc. (the ―Company‖) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
January 2, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the ―Report‖), the undersigned certifies,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company as of, and for, the periods presented in this Report.

February 24, 2011

/s/ Tiffany B. Kice
Tiffany B. Kice
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer
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